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HACKENSACK PUBLIC SCHOOLS

191 Second Street, Hackensack, NJ 07601
www.hackensackschools.org

January 31, 2019
Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Hackensack School District
Hackensack, New Jersey 07601

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Hackensack School District for the Fiscal Year
ended June 30, 2018, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of
the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report
is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the Basic
Financial Statements and results of Operations of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four Sections as follows:

e The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the District's Organizational Chart, list of
professional advisors and a list of principal officials.

o The Financial Section includes the basic Financial Statements and Schedules, required supplementary
information, Management's Discussion and Analysis as well as the auditor's report thereon.

e The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a multi-year basis.

e The Single Audit Section includes the Auditor’s report on the internal control structure and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and finding and recommendations. The
District is required to undergo an Annual Single Audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Title 2 U.S. Code of Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey States Office of
Management and Budget Circular 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants,
State Grants and State Aid." Information related to this Single Audit, including the auditor's
report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and findings and recommendations are included in the Single Audit section of this
report.


http://www.hackensackschools.org/

REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

Hackensack School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as established by the National Council on
Governmental Accounting (NCGA) Statement No. 14. All funds and account groups of the
District are included in this Report. The Hackensack Board of Education and all its schools
constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K
through 12. These include regular academic, technological, vocational, as well as, special
education for handicapped students. This District is also a receiving school District from
Maywood, Rochelle Park and South Hackensack.

The District completed the 2017-2018 fiscal year with an Average Daily Enrollment of 5,673
students, which is 6 students below the previous year's enrollment. The following details
the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last ten years:

Average Daily

Fiscal Student Number Percent
Year Enrollment Change Change
2017-18 5,673 (6) -0.10%
2016-17 5,679 (11) -0.20%
2015-16 5,690 78 1.39%
2014-15 5,612 149 2.73%
2013-14 5,463 57 1.05%
2012-13 5,406 182 3.48%
2011-12 5,224 92 1.79%
2010-11 5,132 99 1.97%
2009-10 5,033 131 2.67%
2008-09 4,902 (20) -0.41%

For the 2017-2018 school year, the District was configured as follows:

. Early Childhood Developmental Center Grades Pre-K through K
. Fairmount Elementary School Grades K through 4

. Fanny M. Hillers Elementary School Grades K through 4

J Jackson Avenue Elementary School Grades K through 4

J Nellie K. Parker Elementary School Grades K through 4

J Hackensack Middle School Grades 5 through 8

o Hackensack High School Grades 9 through 12

Based on Demographic Projections prepared in February 2015 by Whitehall Associates, the
Hackensack Board of Education determined that the District is facing the need to expand in order
to meet the projected growth in enrollment. In 2013, the Hackensack Board of Education approved
a five year lease for a school located in Hackensack from the Archdiocese of Newark to help
alleviate the immediate need for space. This facility is referred to as the Hackensack Early
Childhood Development Center and houses Pre-K through Kindergarten.



2. MAJOR INITIATIVES — 2017-2018:

Educational programs, Grades Pre-K-12

Our District serves students in Pre-K - 12, with a Pre-K Program, 4 elementary schools, a middle
school and one high school, with a total student population of over 5,600 students. Our Program
of instruction follows the New Jersey Students Learning Standards (NJSLS) and aims to provide
for personalized learning, supporting the needs of individual students to address the achievement
gaps. Teachers provide for engaging and rigorous learning in classroom environments that privilege
problem-solving, digital learning, career-readiness skills, to prepare all students to be Future Ready.

The 17/18 school year saw our Pre-K full-day program continued to expand, with an increase in
the number of full-day students to 155 (up from 142). The Pre-K expansion also included
curriculum updates with Creative Curriculum (2016 Ed), and related professional development to
support implementation of the program with fidelity.

In the area of Mathematics, during the 17/18 school year, a major focus was on professional
development activities that supported a deeper understanding of mathematical practices and the
New Jersey Student Learning Standards. Specific attention was given to curriculum revisions,
alignment to the standards and pacing. A new mathematics program, Go Math was adopted for
grade 6, with plans to move it into grade 7 for the 18/19 school year, to provide for more updated
resources. This adoption will also facilitate vertical alignment with the New Jersey Student
Learning Standards and provide for a more cohesive program throughout the district. Special
Education teachers and staff also received professional training to support differentiated
instruction, the inclusion model, and placements in the least restrictive environment

In the area of English Language Arts, the district moved into year 3 of the Journeys Program in
grades K-5, and professional development focused on the use of ThinkCentral, as well as the use
of technology-based products within the program, to provide for implementation with fidelity and
support the district’s blended learning goals. Teachers in grades 6-12 continue their novel-based
approach to the teaching of reading and writing at their grade level, while incorporating more non-
fiction text top support students in making the connection to content to improve writing skills. At
the 5-12 level, there was a greater focus on providing for differentiation with additional Read180
and Systems 44 intervention support (also used within Bilingual Program), to help teachers deepen
understanding of best practices and implementation of the programs, with fidelity.

In order to support alignment of science curriculum to New Jersey Student Learning Standards by
September 2017, the district worked with teacher-teams to create K-5 curriculum guides to align to
NJSLS and NextGen. Some teachers were also provided with release time to participate in our local
Curriculum Consortium with Rochelle Park and Maywood. Several programs were also evaluated
for grades 6-8 and the district will pilot a new science program for grades 6-8, in the 18/19 school
year. Teachers in grades K-8 continued to participate in professional development to support a
deeper understanding of NextGen Science Standards, with specific focus on science and
engineering practices, disciplinary core ideas and crosscutting concepts.

In the areas of Social Studies, we moved into year 4 of the My World Social Studies program, K-
5. The program is aligned with the New Jersey Student Learning Standards and supports the need
to increase non-fiction reading and allows students to make connections with their community,
school and family. This program continues to support vertical articulation and alignment with



current Social Students standards in grades 6-8. Students in grades 9-12 a revision of the SS
curriculum continued and related course syllabi were updated to ensure that document-based
questions and evidence-based writing activities aligned with the NJSLS.

In grades 9-12, our focus was on updating the 1-1 environment with Chromebooks across all
instructional settings, to support blended learning and personalized learning goals. Teachers and
students are immersed in a technology rich environment and teacher-led professional development
continued to provide for differentiated training in the use technology, educational apps, and tools
that support teaching and learning.

At the 9-12 level, student scheduling provides for student choice, while ensuring students are taking
all courses needed to meet graduation requirements. Updates to curriculum continued to provide
for increased alignment and more rigorous learning outcomes across all courses, with new
curriculum being written in CP and PreAP Biology, Chemistry and Physics, Environmental
Science, English IV, World History and Pre AP French. Increased integration of technology also
included the use of Google Classroom and related Google tools.

Our 1:1 technology initiative spans K-12 and continued with upgrades students will continue to
access eBooks via digital licenses and varied online instructional resources. The District’s Digital
Learning Plan (2016-2019) continues to inform planning and will expand opportunities to use
technology not only as an instructional tool, but also as resources for students to integrate and
extend learning. Professional development in this area continued with a focus on the SAMR Model,
Google Classroom, classroom Apps, and other teacher-facilitated professional learning during
grade-level meetings (K-4), or in PLCs (5-12).

Increased technology integration also provides for increased preparation for online assessments and
PARCC testing. At the elementary level, the instructional ELA and Math programs were further
supported by integration of technology and digital learning skills, across the content areas. Our
focus on blended learning and differentiation also provided for having four schools, Hillers, Parker,
Hackensack Middle School and Hackensack High School submit successful applications for
“Future Ready School Certification.”

In addition to our rigorous academic programs, we offer students many activities during and after
school that support their growth. Our competitive and recreational sports programs, clubs and
activities, such as Robotics, engage students in hands-on, inquiry-based learning and provide
students with opportunities to learn life skills in various settings.

Other facility initiatives included:

High school upgrades boiler replacement project (including additional generator support)
Boiler repairs throughout the District;

Roofing repairs and the Middle School and High School;
Other facility initiatives included:

Roofing repairs and the Middle School and High School;
Replacement of the HHS turf field;



INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure the adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).
The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:

(1) The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived
(2) The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations related to those Programs. This internal control structure is also subject to
periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District's Single Audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy
of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and
regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls which now includes the prerequisite that all
requisitions confirm the use of Ed Data, MCESC, State Contracts etc., the District maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with
legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated Budget approved by the voters of the
municipality. Annual appropriated Budgets are adopted for the General Fund, the Special
Revenue Fund, and the Debt Service Fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital
improvements accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund. The final Budget amount as
amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on
a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-
appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated
are reported as Reservations of Fund Balance at June 30, 2018.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District's accounting records reflect Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP), as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups.
These funds and account groups are explained in "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note
1.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

At June 30, 2018, the District had $1,175,000 in outstanding bonds payable and $1,262,399
in capital leases payable. Additional information regarding the District’s debt is contained
in the "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 7.



10.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR-END:

The Board developed its 2017-18 budget under the State's funding formula. An analysis of
the expenditures in the financial section of this report will show that the Board was prudent
in presenting the community with an accurate picture of educational needs.

CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in "Notes
to the Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a Cash Management Plan,
which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the
provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted
in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking
institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in
public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the
Act.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board completed its first year as a member of the New Jersey School Boards Association
Insurance Group, North Jersey Educational Insurance Fund which self-insures Workers'
Compensation and purchases general liability, auto and property insurance on a volume basis
(Joint Insurance Fund).

OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants (CPA) or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Ferraioli,
Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva, and P.A. was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the
requirements set forth in State statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Award (Uniform Guidance) and State
Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB. The auditor's report on the basic financial statements and
specific required supplemental information is included in the financial section of this report.
The auditor's reports related specifically to the Single Audit are included in the Single Audit
section of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Hackensack School Board for
their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school
District and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our
financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of our Office of Business Administration staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Rosemary Marks Dr. Joseph Amatuzzi
Acting Superintendent Interim School Business Administrator/
Hackensack Public Schools Board Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
City of Hackensack School District
County of Bergen

Hackensack, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education
of the City of Hackensack School District, in the County of Bergen, State of New Jersey, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

10



Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Page 2.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Hackensack Board of Education, in the
County of Bergen, State of New Jersey, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, in 2018, the Board adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post
Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 45). Our opinions
are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Budgetary Comparison Information, Schedules Related to
Accounting and Reporting for Pensions, and Other Post Employment Benefits identified in the table of
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in

n



Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Page 3.

an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Hackensack Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) and the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required by NJ
OMB 15-08 and the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance) and the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required by NJ OMB 15-08
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the schedule of expenditures of state
financial assistance as required by NJ OMB 15-08 are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical data section has not been subject to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

FWC
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,
2019 on our consideration of the City of Hackensack Board of Education’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City of Hackensack Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Steven . Wietkots

Steven D. Wielkotz, C.P.A.
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 816

Feraioti, Witthots, Corwtts + Cova,PO.
FERRAIOLIL WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

January 31, 2019

FWC
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CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
HACKENSACK, NJ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

As management of the City of Hackensack School District (the “School District”), we offer readers of the School
District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
Hackensack School District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

The management’s discussion and analysis is provided at the beginning of the audit to provide an overall review
of the past and current position of the School District’s financial condition. This summary should not be taken as
a replacement for the audit which consists of the financial statements and other supplemental information that
presents all the School District’s revenues and expenditures by program for the General Fund, Special Revenue
Fund, Capital Projects Fund, Debt Service Fund and Enterprise Fund.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. In total, net position increased $2,439,426. Net position of governmental activities increased
$2,192,025 while net position of business-type activity increased by $247,401.

. General revenues accounted for $141,907,856 in revenue or 95 percent of all district revenues.
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and sales, grants and contributions
accounted for $7,206,340 or 5 percent of total revenues of $149,114,196.

. The School District had $144,247,670 in expenses related to governmental activities; only
$4,537,785 of these expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, grants or
contributions. General revenues (primarily grants, entitlements and property taxes) of $139,709,885
were adequate to provide for these programs.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Hackensack School District’s
basic financial statements. The City of Hackensack School District’s basic financial statements are comprised of
three components: 1) district-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

-14-



CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
HACKENSACK, NJ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT, (continued),

District-Wide Financial Statements,

The district-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of
Hackensack School District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Hackensack School District’s assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
City of Hackensack School District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the district-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Hackensack School District that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City of Hackensack School District include instruction, support
services and special schools. The business-type activities of the City of Hackensack School District include the food
service program.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The City of Hackensack School District, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of these
funds of the City of Hackensack School District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

-15-



CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
HACKENSACK, NJ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT, (continued)

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the district-wide financial statements. However, unlike the district-wide financial statements, governmental fund
financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflow of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a District’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the district-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the district-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact
of the District’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Hackensack School District maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund, and debt service fund
which are all considered to be major funds.

The City of Hackensack School District adopts annual appropriated budgets for its governmental funds except for
the capital projects fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund, special revenue

fund and debt service fund to demonstrate compliance with their budgets.

Proprietary Funds

The City of Hackensack School District maintains one proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the district-wide financial statements. The City of
Hackensack School District uses enterprise funds to account for its food service program.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the district-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the local district services operations.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the District. Fiduciary funds
are not reflected in the district-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to
support the City of Hackensack School District’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much
like that used for proprietary funds.

-16-



CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
HACKENSACK, NJ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT, (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the district-
wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning budgetary information for the District’s major funds.

Our auditor has provided assurance in his independent auditor’s report, located immediately preceding this
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financial Statements are fairly stated. Varying degrees of
assurance are being provided by the auditor regarding the Required Supplemental Information and the Supplemental
Information identified above. A user of this report should read the independent auditor’s report carefully to ascertain
the level of assurance being provided for each of the other parts in the Financial Section.

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole. Net position may, over time,
serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.

The District’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of activities,

the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets and the depreciation of capital
assets.

-17-



CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
HACKENSACK, NJ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, (continued)

The School District’s net position was $(619,863) at June 30,2018 and $(3,059,289) at June 30,2017. Restricted items
of net position are reported separately to show legal constraints that limit the School District’s ability to use these items
of net position for day-to-day operations. Our analysis below focuses on the net position for 2018 compared to 2017
(Table 1) and change in net position (Table 2) of the School District.

Table 1

Net Position

June 30,
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Assets
Current and Other Assets 18,286,211 15,193,915 1,170,446 883,406 19,456,657 16,077,321
Capital Assets:
Land and Construction in

Progress 1,106,637 149,160 1,106,637 149,160
Depreciable Buildings,

Improvements and

Equipment (Net) 19,103,295 19,619,893 326,579 326,094 19,429,874 19,945,987

Total Assets 38,496,143 34,962,968 1,497,025 1,209,500 39,993,168 36,172,468
Deferred Outflows:
Unamortized Bond

Issuance Costs 16,397 24,598 16,397 24,598
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Related to PERS 10,834,763 15,300,093 10,834,763 15,300,093
Total Deferred Outflows 10,851,160 15,324,691 10,851,160 15,324,691

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 3,351,884 3,045,071 190,258 150,134 3,542,142 3,195,205
Noncurrent Liabilities 39,479,947 50,459,690 39,479,947 50,459,690
Total Liabilities 42,831,831 53,504,761 190,258 150,134 43,022,089 53,654,895
Deferred Inflows:
Unamortized Bond
Issuance Premiums 84,309 126,466 84,309 126,466
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to PERS 8,357,793 775,087 8,357,793 775,087
Total Deferred Inflows 8,442,102 901,553 8,442,102 901,553
Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets-

Net of Related Debt 17,704,621 17,223,376 326,579 326,094 18,031,200 17,549,470
Restricted 15,616,934 12,657,948 15,616,934 12,657,948
Unrestricted (35,248,185) (33,999,979) 980,188 733,272 (34,267,997) (33,266,707)
Total Net Position (1,926,630) (4,118,655) 1,306,767 1,059,366 (619,863) (3,059,289)
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CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
HACKENSACK, NJ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, (continued)

Table 2 below shows the changes in net position for fiscal year 2018 compared to 2017.

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
Year Ended June 30,
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services and
Sales 427,223 437,568 427,223 437,568
Operating Grants and
Contributions 4,537,785 3,854,009 2,241,332 2,155,209 6,779,117 6,009,218
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes 81,921,377 79,758,684 81,921,377 79,758,684
Federal and State Aid not
Restricted 44,253,018 47,401,576 44,253,018 47,401,576
Capital Grants and
Contributions 2,875 4,285 2,875 4,285
Tuition Received 7,651,040 8,129,712 7,651,040 8,129,712
Miscellaneous Income 973,876 161,514 5,946 979,822 161,514
Investment Income 33,630 16,446 11 33,630 16,457
Total Revenues and Transfers 139,373,601 139,326,226 2,674,501 2,592,788 142,048,102 141,919,014
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CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

HACKENSACK, NJ

(CONTINUED)

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, (continued)

Functions/Program Expenses
Instruction:
Regular
Special Education
Other Special Instruction
Other Instruction
Support Services:
Tuition
Student & Instruction
Related Services
School Administrative
Services
General Administrative
Services
Central Administration and
Admin. Info. Tech.
Plant Operations and
Maintenance
Pupil Transportation

Unallocated Benefits
Charter Schools

Capital Outlay-
Non-depreciable
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Unallocated depreciation
Capital Lease Obligations
and Amortization
Food Service
Total Expenses and Transfers
Increase or (Decrease) in

Net Position

Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

2018 2017 2018
47,378,571 48,403,666
16,621,434 17,289,908
3,210,306 3,449,483
2,269,278 2,227,997
7,000,963 6,678,148
17,540,603 19,302,967
6,182,749 6,175,303
1,330,245 1,177,771
2,475,056 2,489,029
9,730,533 10,227,734
2,505,866 3,087,134
15,620,247 15,852,579 ,
3,287,937 3,185,751
836,338 1,128,571
82,095 114,440
1,143,311 1,142,749
(33,956) (33,956)
- - 2,427,100
137,181,576 141,899,274 2,427,100
2,192,025 (2.573.048) 247.401
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Total
2017 2018 2017

47,378,571 48,403,666

16,621,434 17,289,908

3,210,306 3,449,483

2,269,278 2,227,997

7,000,963 6,678,148

17,540,603 19,302,967

6,182,749 6,175,303

1,330,245 1,177,771

2,475,056 2,489,029

9,730,533 10,227,734

, 2,505,866 3,087,134
15,620,247 15,852,579

3,287,937 3,185,751

836,338 1,128,571

82,095 114,440

1,143,311 1,142,749
(33,956) (33,956)

2,400,207 2,427,100 2,400,207
2,400,207 139,608,676 144,299,481
192,581 2,439,426 (2,380,467)




CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
HACKENSACK, NJ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, (continued)

Governmental and Business-Type Activities

As reported in the Statement of Activities the cost of all of our governmental and business-type activities this year was
$139,608,676. However, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through School District
taxes was only $81,921,377 because some of the cost was paid by those who benefitted from the programs $427,223,
by other governments and organizations who subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions $6,779,117,
unrestricted federal and state aid $44,253,018 federal and state aid capital outlay $2,875, tuition received $7,651,040,
investment income $33,630, and by miscellaneous sources $979,822.

The following schedules present a summary of governmental fund revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2018, and the amount and percentage of increases/(decreases) relative to the prior year.

Increase/ Percent of
Percent of (Decrease) Increase/ Prior
Revenue Amount Total from 2017 (Decrease) Year
Local Source $90,579,923 72.2% $2,513,567 2.85% $88,066,356
State Source 31,428,514 25.0% 4,309,779 15.89% 27,118,735
Federal Source 3,456,224 2.8% 358,494 11.57% 3,097,730
Total $125,464.661 100.0% $7,181,840 6.07% $118,282,821
Increase/ Percent of
Percent of (Decrease) Increase/ Prior
Expenditures Amount Total from 2017 (Decrease) Year
Current Expenditures:
Instruction 49,876,851 40.4% 1,897,391 3.95% 47,979,460
Undistributed 70,514,067 57.1% 3,143,144 4.67% 67,370,923
Debt Service 664,813 0.5% (31,850) (4.57%) 696,663
Capital Outlay 2,391,640 2.0% 919,162 62.42% 1,472,478
Total $123.447.371 100.0% $5,927.847 5.04% $117,519,524

Changes in expenditures were the result of varying factors. Current expense undistributed increased due to significant
health insurance cost increases combined with increased student special education enrollment.
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CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
HACKENSACK, NJ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BUDGETING AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

The School District’s budgets are prepared according to New Jersey law. The most significant budgeted funds are the
general fund, the special revenue fund and the debt service fund. The capital projects fund is funded by the bond
proceeds and state aid. Therefore no budget is presented.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the School District amended the General Fund Budget by $1,250,000 for
increases in Capital Outlay and $758,975 for increases in Regular Programs — Instruction and Salaries and Benefits.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the School District amended the Special Revenue Fund by $1,131,642 for
increases in federal and state grants.

General Fund

The general fund actual revenue was $121,277,863, including capital leases and transfers. Thatamountis $15,101,711
above the final amended budget of $106,176,692. The variance between the actual revenues and final budget was the
result of non-budgeted on-behalf payments of $14,511,019 for TPAF pension and social security reimbursements,
$(217,779) deficit in miscellaneous anticipated revenues, $9,865 excess in extraordinary aid, $3,850 excess in state
aid, $(5,784) decrease in federal aid and $800,000 of non-budgeted capital leases.

The actual expenditures of the general fund were $118,241,898 including transfers which is $5,351,096 above the final
amended budget of $112,890,802. The variance between the actual expenditures and final budget was due to non-
budget on-behalf payments of $14,511,019 for TPAF pension and social security reimbursements, and $9,159,923 of
unexpended budgeted funds.

General fund had total revenues and other financing sources of $121,277,863 and total expenditures including transfers
of $118,241,898 with an ending fund balance of $17,685,417 on the budgetary basis of accounting.

Special Revenue Fund

The special revenue fund actual revenue was $4,942,514 including transfers. That amount is $452,678 below the final
amended budget of $5,395,192. The variance between the actual revenues and the final budget was state and federal
grant revenue that was anticipated to be spent by fiscal year end. The state and federal grant revenue will be
received/realized in the next fiscal year.

The actual expenditures of the special revenue fund were $4,942,514, which is $452,678 below the final amended

budget of $5,395,192. The variance between the actual expenditures and the final budget was due to the anticipation
of fully expending state and federal grant programs. Expenditures will be incurred in the next fiscal year.

-22-



CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
HACKENSACK, NJ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2018 the School District had $52,367,475 invested in sites, buildings, equipment and
construction in progress. Of this amount $31,830,964 in depreciation has been taken over the years. We currently
have a net book value of $20,536,511. Total additions for the year were $1,615,847, the majority of which was for
various technology and office equipment, transportation equipment, food service equipment and improvements to the
District’s facilities. Table 3 shows fiscal year 2018 balances compared to 2017.

Table 3
Capital Assets at June 30,
(Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Land 1,106,637 149,160 1,106,637 149,160
Buildings and
Improvements 17,485,619 18,373,756 137,162 146,568 17,622,781 18,520,324
Furniture, Equipment
and Vehicles 1,617,676 1,246,137 189,417 179,526 1,807,093 1,425,663
20,209,932 19,769,053 326,579 326,094 20,536,511 20,095,147

For more detailed information, please refer to the Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2018, the District had $39,479,947 of long-term debt. Of this amount, $2,642,678 is for compensated
absences, $1,175,000 of serial bonds for school construction, $1,262,399 is for obligation under capital leases and
$34,399,870 is for net pension liability.

Table 4
Outstanding Serial Bonds at June 30,

2018 2017
2009 Refunding School Improvement
Bonds 1,175,000 1,755,000
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CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
HACKENSACK, NJ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS

The economy in the State of New Jersey is slowly improving. The current State of New Jersey revenue estimates have
declined to the point that the legislature and governor have approved a State Aid funding bill for the 2018-2019 school
year that is greater than the level of the 2017-2018 school year.

These factors were considered in preparing the City of Hackensack School District’s budgets for the 2018-2019 fiscal
year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Hackensack School District’s finances
for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to:

School Business Administrator
City of Hackensack School District
191 Second Street

Hackensack, NJ 07601
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Exhibit A-1

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 6,456,047 695,473 7,151,520
Receivables, net 3,276,836 453,739 3,730,575
Inventory 21,234 21,234
Restricted assets:
Capital reserve account - cash 7,540,712 7,540,712
Emergency reserve account - cash 1,010,306 1,010,306
Maintenance reserve account - cash 2,310
Capital assets:
Land and Construction in Progess 1,106,637 1,106,637
Depreciable Buildings, Improvements and Equipment (net) 19,103,295 326,579 19,429,874
Total Assets 38,496,143 1,497,025 39,990,858
Deffered Outflows:
Unamortized bond issuance costs 16,397 16,397
Deferred outflows of resources related to PERS 10,834,763 10,834,763
Total Deferred Outflows 10,851,160 - 10,851,160
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,316,355 190,258 3,506,613
Payable to state government 32,861 32,861
Unearned revenue 2,668 2,668
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 974,245 974,245
Due beyond one year 38,505,702 38,505,702
Total liabilities 42,831,831 190,258 43,022,089
Deferred Inflows:
Unamortized bond issuance premiums 84,309 84,309
Deferred inflows of resources related to PERS 8,357,793 8,357,793
Total Deffered Inflows 8,442,102 8,442,102
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets 17,704,621 326,579 18,031,200
Restricted for:
Capital projects 7,540,712 7,540,712
Other purposes 8,076,222 8,076,222
Unrestricted (Deficit) (35,248,185) 980,188 (34,267,997)
Total net position (1,926,630) 1,306,767 (619,863)

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2018

Exhibit B-1

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Checking 6,456,047 6,456,047
Accounts Receivable -
Interfunds 578,781 578,781
Intergovernmental - Federal 680,718 680,718
Intergovernmental - State 909,865 34,564 944,429
Other receivables 1,644,689 7,000 1,651,689
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital reserve 7,540,712 7,540,712
Maintenance reserve 1,010,306 1,010,306
Emergency reserve 2,310 2,310
Total assets 18,142,710 722,282 18,864,992
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,732,382 107,972 1,840,354
Intergovernmental accounts payable - State 32,861 32,861
Interfund payables 578,781 578,781
Unearned revenue 2,668 2,668
Total liabilities 1,732,382 722,282 2,454,664
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Excess Surplus - current year 2,950,832 2,950,832
Excess Surplus - prior year - designated for
subsequent year's expenditures 1,914,090 1,914,090
Capital reserve account 7,540,712 7,540,712
Maintenance reserve account 1,010,306 1,010,306
Emergency reserve account 2,310 2,310
Assigned to:
Year-end Encumbrances 2,133,044 2,133,044
Designated by the BOE for
subsequent year's expenditures 65,640 65,640
Unassigned:
General fund 793,394 793,394
Total Fund balances 16,410,328 - 16,410,328
Total liabilities and fund balances 18,142,710 722,282
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets (A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $51,685,963 and the accumulated depreciation
is $31,476,031. 20,209,932
Accrued liability for interest on long-term debt is not due and payable
in the current period and is not reported as a liability in the funds (18,669)
Accounts payable for subsequent Pension payment is not a payable
in the funds (1,457,332)
Bond issuance premium is recorded as revenue in the Governmental
Funds in the year of receipt. The original premium is $421,570 and
and accumulated amortization is $295,104 (84,309)
Bond issuance costs are reported as expenditures in the Governmental
Funds in the year of the expenditure. The costs are $82,010 and
accumulated amortization is $57,412 16,397
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources are applicable to future
periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows of resources related to PERS Pension Liability 10,834,763
Deferred inflows of resources related to PERS Pension Liability (8,357,793)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported as
liabilties in the funds (see Note 7) 39,479,947
Net position of governmental activities (1,926,630

he accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statemer
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

REVENUES
Local sources:
Municipal tax levy
Tuition charges
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve Funds
Interest Earned on Maintenance Reserve Funds
Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular instruction
Special education instruction
Other special instruction
School sponsored/other instructional
Support services and undistributed costs:
Tuition
Attendance and social work services
Health services
Student & instruction related services
School administrative services
General administrative services
Central services & administrative
information technology
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Unallocated benefits
On-behalf contributions
Transfer to charter school
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Capital Leases (non-budgeted)

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance—1July 1

Fund balance—June 30

Exhibit B-2

Special Debt Total
General Revenue Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds

81,256,564 664,813 81,921,377
7,651,040 7,651,040
28,384 28,384
5,246 5,246
973,876 973,876
89,915,110 - 664,813 90,579,923
30,178,708 1,249,806 31,428,514
165,370 3,290,854 3,456,224
120,259,188 4,540,660 664,813 125,464,661
31,090,437 3,570,911 34,661,348
11,313,451 11,313,451
2,176,804 2,176,804
1,725,248 1,725,248
7,000,963 7,000,963
12,500 12,500
927,182 927,182
10,621,536 1,378,373 11,999,909
4,195,262 4,195,262
1,091,233 1,091,233
1,794,776 1,794,776
7,981,821 7,981,821
2,483,988 2,483,988
15,227,477 15,227,477
14,511,019 14,511,019
3,287,937 3,287,937
580,000 580,000
84,813 84,813
2,388,765 2,875 2,391,640
117,830,399 4,952,159 664,813 123,447,371
2,428,789 (411,499) - 2,017,290
411,499 411,499

(411,499) (411,499)
800,000 800,000
388,501 411,499 - 800,000
2,817,290 - - 2,817,290
13,593,038 - 13,593,038
16,410,328 - - 16,410,328

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.
Depreciation expense
Depreciable Capital outlays

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statement of activities.
In the current year , these amounts consist of:

General Bond Obligations - Principal
Capital Lease Obligations - Principal

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in the governmental funds. They are not revenue in
the statement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
Capital lease proceeds

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities is accrued,
regardless of when due. In the governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued
interest is an addition in the reconciliation. (+)

General Bond Obligations - Prior Year
General Bond Obligations
Capital Lease Obligations - Prior Year
Capital Lease Obligations

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the paid amount
exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).
Decrease in compensated absences payable

District pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made.
However, per GASB No. 68 they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of
Net Position because the reported net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report
date. Pension expense, which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.
District Pension Contributions
Less: Pension Expense
Increase in Pension Expense

Per GASB No. 68, Non-employer contributing entities are required to record any increases in revenue
and expense for On-behalf TPAF pension payments paid by the State of New Jersey on the Statement
of Activities that are in excess of those amounts reported in the fund financial statements.
Increase in On-behalf State Aid TPAF Pension
Increase in On-behalf TPAF Pension Expense

The governmental funds report the effect of bond premiums when debt is first issued. Whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities (+)

The governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs when debt is first issued. Whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities (-)

Per GASB No. 75 Non-employer contributing entities are required to record an increases in revenue and
expense for On-behalf TPAF post employment medical payments paid by the State of New Jersey on the
Statement of Activities that are in excess of those amounts reported in the fund financial statements

Increase in On-behalf State Aid TPAF Post Employment Medical Revenue
Increase in On-behalf State Aid TPAF Post Employment Medical Expense

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2,817,290
(1,143311)
1,584,190
440,879
580,000
226,410
806,410
(800,000
14,135
(9,302)
7,252
(9.367)
2,718
198,216
1,368,986
(2,676,430
(1,307,444)
13,908,940
(13,908,940)
42,157
(8,201)
7,066,094
(7,066,094)

2,192,025



Exhibit B-4

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2018
Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Fund
Food Service
Program
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 695,473
Accounts receivable:
State 5,656
Federal 430,502
Other 17,581
Inventories 21,234
Total current assets 1,170,446
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Building and building improvements 188,123
Equipment 493,389
Less accumulated depreciation (354,933)
Total capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) 326,579
Total assets 1,497,025
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 190,258
Total Liabilities 190,258
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets net of
related debt 326,579
Unrestricted 980,188
Total net position 1,306,767

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-5

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Food Service

Program
Operating revenues:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs 290,244
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs 136,979
Total operating revenues 427,223
Operating expenses:
Cost of food - reimbursable programs 978,952
Cost of food - non-reimbursable programs 47,740
Salaries 952,714
Supplies and materials 96,330
Employee benefits 150,466
Depreciation expense 31,172
Repairs and other expenses 39,517
Purchased services 124,724
Miscellaneous 5,485
Total Operating Expenses 2,427,100
Operating income (loss) (1,999,877)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State sources:
School lunch program 30,319
Federal sources:
National school lunch program 1,351,559
Breakfast program 617,291
Snack program 48,292
U.S.D.A. Commodities 193,871
Miscellaneous Income 5,946
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,247,278
Income (loss) before contributions & transfers 247,401
Total net position—beginning 1,059,366
Total net position—ending 1,306,767

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources
Federal Sources
Miscellaneous Income
Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Balances—beginning of year
Balances—end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by

Depreciation and net amortization
Food Distribution Program
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Exhibit B-6

Business-type
Activities -

Enterprise Fund

Food Service
Program

427,079
(2,207,601)

(1,780,522)

26,603
1,745,102
5,946

1,777,651

.,871)

698,344
695,473

(1,999,877)

31,172
193,871

(144)

(14,011)
8,467
219,355

(1,780,522)

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Payable to student groups
Due to State of NJ - Unemployment
Payroll deductions and withholdings
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Held in trust for unemployment
claims and other purposes
Reserved for scholarships

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2018
Unemployment Scholarship
Compensation and Memorial Agency
Trust Fund Funds Fund
245,329 77,813 1,040,973
245,329 77,813 1,040,973
- - 338,388
27,936 - -
- - 702,585
27,936 - 1,040,973
217,393
77,813
245,329 77,813



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Exhibit B-8

Unemployment Scholarship
Compensation and Memorial
Trust Fund Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Donations 6,700
Payroll withholdings 84,289
Total Contributions 84,289 6,700
Investment earnings:
Interest 1,396 248
Net investment earnings 1,396 248
Total additions 85,685 6,948
DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment claims 126,136
Scholarships awarded 16,800
Total deductions 126,136 16,800
Change in net assets (40,451) (9,852)
Net position—beginning of the year 257,844 87,665
Net position—end of the year 217,393 77,813

The accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Hackensack School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The financial statements of the Board of Education of the City of Hackensack School District have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The more significant of the Board’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Description of the School District and Reporting Entity:

The Board of Education (“Board”) of the City of Hackensack School District (“District”) is an
instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The City
of Hackensack School District is a Type II district located in the County of Bergen, State of New Jersey.
As a Type Il district, the School District functions independently through a Board of Education. The board
is comprised of nine members and a Borough of Maywood Representative, all elected to three-year terms.
The purpose of the District is to educate students in grades K-12. A superintendent is appointed by the
Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District. Under existing statutes, the Board’s
duties and powers include, but are not limited to, the development and adoption of a school program; the
establishment, organization and operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and disposition of
school property.

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the
establishment of a system of accounting and budgetary controls.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board publication, Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100, “Defining the Financial Reporting Entity” establishes
standards to determine whether a governmental component unit should be included in the financial reporting
entity. The basic criterion for inclusion or exclusion from the financial reporting entity is the exercise of
oversight responsibility over agencies, boards and commissions by the primary government. The exercise
of oversight responsibility includes financial interdependency and a resulting financial benefit or burden
relationship, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence
operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. In addition, certain legally separate, tax-exempt entities
that meet specific criteria (i.e. benefit of economic resources, access/entitlement to economic resources, and
significance) should be included in the financial reporting entity. The combined financial statements include
all funds of the District over which the Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District
include elementary schools, a middle school and a high school, located in the City of Hackensack. There
were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described
above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on
the basis of such criteria.
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City of Hackensack School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

B. Basis of Presentation:

The Board’s basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements, including a statement of net
position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more detailed level of
financial information.

District-wide Financial Statements:

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the Board as a whole.
These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for the fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between those activities of the Board that are governmental and those that are
considered business-type activities.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type
activities of the Board at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the governmental activities and for the
business-type activities of the Board. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.
Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the Board, with
certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent
to which each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the Board.

Fund Financial Statements:

During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to certain School District functions
or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance.
The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds, including its fiduciary funds.
Separate statements for each fund category - government, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The
New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each
governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The
NIJDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote
consistency among district financial reporting models. The various funds of the Board are grouped into the
categories governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.
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City of Hackensack School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the Board are financed.

Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources.

Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which
they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid.

The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The
following are the Board’s governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Board. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified
in the Capital Outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the Board includes budgeted Capital
Outlay in this fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as they
pertain to governmental entities state that General Fund resources may be used to directly finance
capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived
exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid,
District taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of
or additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of
buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These
resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects, Debt Service or the
Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
Proprietary Funds). The financial resources are derived from sale of bonds, lease purchases and other
revenues.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for

and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition,
construction and improvement programs.
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City of Hackensack School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, changes in net
position, financial position and cash flows. The accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. Proprietary funds are
classified as enterprise or internal service; the Board has no internal service funds. The following is
a description of the Proprietary Funds of the Board:

Enterprise Funds - The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises -- where the intent of the Board is that the
costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the
students on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the
Board has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or
other purposes.

The Board's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Fund - Fiduciary Fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Board on behalf of individuals, private
organizations, other governments and/or other funds. Fiduciary Funds include Unemployment

Compensation Insurance, the Memorial Funds, Student Activities Fund and Payroll Agency Fund.

C. Measurement Focus:

District-wide Financial Statements

The District-wide statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) are prepared
using the economic resources measurements focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets and
liabilities associated with the operation of the Board are included on the statement of net position, except
for fiduciary funds.

Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus.

With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance
sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current
financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the
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City of Hackensack School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

District-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include
a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide
statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the District-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are
included on the statement of net position. The statement of changes in fund net position presents increases
(i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The statement of cash flows provides
information about how the Board finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

D. Basis of Accounting:

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements. The District-wide financial statements and the financial statements of the proprietary
and fiduciary funds are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of
accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation
of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue
is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means
that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the Board receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes
is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used
or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the Board must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the Board on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized. Under GAAP, in accordance with GASB
No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, the last state aid payment is not
considered revenue to the school district if the state has not recorded the corresponding expenditure, even
though state law dictates recording the revenue.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and
available at year-end: ad valorem property taxes, tuition, unrestricted grants and interest.

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. The fair value of
donated commodities used during the year is reported in the operating statement as an expense with a like
amount reported as donated commodities revenue.

The measurement of focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and
amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general, and special
revenue funds. The budgets are submitted to the county superintendents office for approval. Budgets are
prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as described
later. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item
accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum
chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2(g)1. Transfers of appropriations may be made by School
Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year. During the year, the Board of Education made additional
appropriations of $2,008,975 of additional state aid for instructional expenses and capital outlay.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during
the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America with the exception
of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and
special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis.
The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis
financial reports.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

F. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in
governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, are reported as reservations of fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to
unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the Board has received advances, are reflected
in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the
beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the

outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

G. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments:

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest.
U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when
purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they
may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be
purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the Board has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit
with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The
statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds
are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks
(both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public
depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily
balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. If'a public depository fails,
the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full
amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

H. Tuition Revenues/Receivable:

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.

1. Inventories:

On District-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at cost, which approximates market on a
first-in, first-out basis and are expensed when used.

On fund financial statements inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the
first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of proprietary funds consist of food and goods held for resale,

as well as supplies, and are expensed when used.

J. Prepaid Items:

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2018, are recorded as
prepaid items using the consumption method. A current asset for the prepaid amount is recorded at the time
of purchase and an expenditure/expense is reported in the year in which services are consumed.

K. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables:

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are
classified as “interfund receivables/payables.” These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and
business-type activities columns of the statement of net position, except for the net residual amounts due
between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances.

L. Capital Assets:

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the enterprise fund.

These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the
governmental activities column of the district -wide statement of net position but are not reported in the fund
financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the enterprise fund are reported both in the business-type
activity column of the District-wide statement of net position and in the fund.

All capital assets acquired or constructed during the year are recorded at actual cost. Donated fixed assets
are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The capital assets acquired or
constructed prior to June 30, 1993 are valued at cost based on historical records or through estimation
procedures performed by an independent appraisal company. Donated capital assets are valued at their
estimated fair market value on the date received. The Board maintains a capitalization threshold of
$2,000.00. The Board does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life
are not.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. Improvements are
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activity
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Sites and Improvements 20 years N/A
Buildings and Improvements 7-50 years N/A
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 5-20 years 5-20 years

M. Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave,
and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered,
and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Board and its employees, is
accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services,
or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Board and its employees, are
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

For the District-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be used in the following
year. In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds, in the Fund Financial Statements, all of the
compensated absences are considered long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a
reconciling item between the fund level and District-wide presentations.

N. Unearned Revenue:

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash that has been received but not yet earned. See
Note 1(F) regarding the special revenue fund.

O. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations:

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the District-wide financial
statements.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely
manner and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
claims and judgements, compensated absences, special termination benefits and contractually required
pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund
financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment in the current year. Bonds, long-term
obligations, and capital leases that will be paid from governmental funds are recognized as a liability in the
fund financial statements when due.

P. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions:

In fiscal year 2015, the District implemented GASB 68. This Statement amends GASB Statement No. 27.
It improves accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves
information provided by state and local government employers about financial support for pensions that is
provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of
existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision useful
information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional
transparency. This Statement replaces the requirement of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pension by State
and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures,
as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent
arrangements that meet certain criteria. The requirements of Statements 27 and 50 remain applicable for
pensions that are not covered by the scope of this Statement.

The District has also implemented GASB Statement 71, Pension Transition for Contributions made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment to GASB No. 68. The objective of this Statement is
to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made
by a state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan
after the measurement date of the government's beginning net pension liability.

Statement 68 requires a state or local government employer (or nonemployer contributing entity in a special
funding situation) to recognize a net pension liability measured as of a date (the measurement date) no earlier
than the end of its prior fiscal year. If a state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing
entity makes a contribution to a defined benefit pension plan between the measurement date of the reported
net pension liability and the end of the government's reporting period, Statement 68 requires that the
government recognize its contribution as a deferred outflow of resources.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

In addition, Statement 68 requires recognition of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources for changes in the net pension liability of a state or local government employer or nonemployer
contributing entity that arise from other types of events. At transition to Statement 68, if it is not practical
for an employer or nonemployer contributing entity to determine the amounts of all deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, paragraph 137 of Statement 68 required that
beginning balances for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources not be reported.
Consequently, if it is not practical to determine the amounts of all deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, contributions made after the measurement date of the
beginning net pension liability could not have been reported as deferred outflows of resources at transition.
This could have resulted in a significant understatement of an employer or nonemployer contributing entity's
beginning net position and expense in the initial period of implementation.

This Statement amends paragraph 137 of Statement 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize
a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the
measurement date of the beginning net pension liability. Statement 68, as amended, continues to require that
beginning balances for other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions be reported at transition only if it is practical to determine all such amounts.

Q. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has only two items that qualify for
reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pension and deferred amounts related to the issuance
of refunding bonds.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has two items that qualify in this category,
deferred amounts related to pension and deferred amounts related to the issuance of refunding bonds.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

R. Fund Balances:

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the Board is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as
follows:

* Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that are not in a spendable form (inventory,
for example) or are required to be maintained intact (the principal of an endowment fund,
for example).

* Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by external resource providers (for example, grant providers), constitutionally,
or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation that creates a new revenue source and
restricts its use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent of
resource providers.

* Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the Board’s highest level of decision-making authority.
Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the government taking the same formal
action that imposed the constraint originally.

+ Assigned fund balance comprises amounts intended to be used by the Board for specific
purposes. Intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which
the governing body delegates the authority. In governmental funds other than the general
fund, assigned fund balance represents the amount that is not restricted or committed. This
indicates that resources in other governmental funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used
for the purpose of that fund.

+ Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all
amounts not contained in the other classifications. Unassigned amounts are technically
available for any purpose. If another governmental fund has a fund balance deficit, then it
will be reported as a negative amount in the unassigned classification in that fund. Positive
unassigned amounts will be reported only in the general fund.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

S. Net Position:

Net position represent the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position are reported as restricted when there
are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the Board or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

The Board applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net position are available.

T. Operating Revenues and Expenses:

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary
funds. For the Board, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating expenses are necessary costs
incurred to provide the good or service that is the primary activity of the fund.

U. Extraordinary and Special Items:

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence.
Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of the Board and that are either unusual
in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither type of transaction occurred during the fiscal year.

V. Allocation of Indirect Expenses:

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses are allocated to functions but are reported
separately in the Statement of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer’s share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were not allocated. Depreciation expense,
where practicable, is specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column of
the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed to a specific function is
considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities as unallocated
depreciation. Interest on long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the
Statement of Activities.

W. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect certain
reports, amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

X. Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement applies to government
employers who provided OPEB plans to their employees and basically parallels GASB Statement 68 and
replaces GASB Statement 45. The Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2017 and
was implemented by the District for the year ended June 30, 2018.

In March 2016, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 81, lrrevocable
Split-Interest Agreements. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting
for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations
in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. The District does not believe this Statement will
have any effect on future financial statements.

In November 2016, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 83, Certain
Asset Retirement Obligations. This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of
recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflows of resources for asset retirement obligations
(AROs). The District does not believe this Statement will have any effect on future financial statements.

In January 2017, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary
Activities. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local
governments. The focus on the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets
of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria
are included to identify component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities. The District is currently evaluating the effects, if any, this Statement may have on future financial
statements.

In March 2017, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus
2017, which addresses practice issues that have been identified during the implementation and application
of certain GASB statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues relating to
blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits.
The District implemented this Statement for the year ended June 30, 2018.

In May 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt
Extinguishment Issues, which improves consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance
defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired
with only existing resources—resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt—are placed in an
irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and
financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for
debt that is defeased in substance. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2017. The District had no transactions of this type for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

X. Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In June 2017, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, which
improves accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement requires recognition
of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.
It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the fundamental principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. The requirements of this Statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15,2019. The District is currently reviewing what effect, if any,
this Statement may have on future financial statements.

In March 2018, Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 88, Certain
Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placement. The objective of this
Statement is to improve consistency in the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial
statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements, and to provide financial
statement users with additional essential information about debt. This Statement is effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2018. The District believes this may impact the disclosures relating to debt
in the notes to the financial statements.

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS:

Cash

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The District’s policy is based on New Jersey Statutes requiring cash be deposited
only in New Jersey based banking institutions that participate in New Jersey Governmental Depository
Protection Act (GUDPA) or in qualified investments established in New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37
that are treated as cash equivalents. As of June 30, 2018, $-0- of the District’s bank balance of
$18,386,449 was exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments

Investment Rate Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However, New Jersey
Statutes 18A:20-37 limits the length of time for most investments to 397 days.
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NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS: (continued)

Credit Risk

New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 limits school district investments to those specified in the Statutes.
The type of allowance investments are Bonds of the United States of America, bonds or other
obligations of the school districts or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units within which
the school district is located: obligations of federal agencies not exceeding 397 days; government
money market mutual funds; the State of New Jersey Cash Management Plan; local government

investment pools; or repurchase of fully collateralized securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one issuer.

NOTE 3. RECEIVABLES:

Receivables at June 30,2018, consisted of accounts receivable and intergovernmental. All receivables
are considered collectible in full. A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables

follows:
Governmental District Wide
Fund Financial Enterprise Financial
Fund Statements
Interfunds $ $
State Aid 5,656 950,085
Federal Aid 430,502 1,111,220
Other 17,581 1,669,270
Gross Receivables 453,739 3,730,575
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles
Total Receivables, Net $453,739 $3,730,575
NOTE 4. INTERFUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY:
Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2018 consist of the following:
$578.781 Due to the General Fund from the Special Revenue Fund for short-term loans.

It is anticipated that all interfunds will be liquidated during the fiscal year.
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NOTE 4. INTERFUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY: (continued)

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

$411.499

Education.

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS:

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Governmental Activities
Capital assets that are not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Building and building improvements
Machinery and equipment
Totals at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net of
accumulated depreciation

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities:
Building and Building improvements
Equipment

Totals at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building and building improvements
Equipment

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was not allocated to governmental functions.

“unallocated depreciation”.

Transfer from the General Fund to the Special Revenue Fund for Preschool

Balance Balance
6/30/2017 Additions Deletions 6/30/2018
$68,800 $ $ $ 68,800
80,360 957,477 1,037,837
149,160 957,477 1,106,637
44,821,729 44,821,729
5,130,884 626,713 5,757,597
49,952,613 626,713 50,579,326
(26,447,973) (888,137) (27,336,110)
(3,884,747) (255,174) (4,139,921)
(30,332,720) (1,143,311) (31,476,031)
19,619,893 (516,598) 19,103,295
$19,769.,053 $440,879 $ $20,209,932
188,123 188,123
461,732 31,657 493,389
649,855 31,657 681,512
(41,555) (9,406) (50,961)
(282,206) (21,766) (303,972)
(323,761) (31,172) (323,761)
$326,094 $485 $ $326,579
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM OBLIGATION ACTIVITY:

Advance and Current Refundings of Debt

On September 9, 2009, the District issued $5,550,000 in School District Refunding Bonds having an interest
rate 0f 2.00% to 5.00%. These bonds were issued in order to advance refund certain principal maturities and
certain interest payments of various School District Bonds of the District. The total bond principal defeased
was $5,418,000 and the total interest payments defeased was $529,800. The net proceeds of $5,889,561
(after payment of underwriting fees, insurance and other insurance costs) were used to purchase U.S.
Government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to
provide for all future debt service payments. As a result, the advance of refunding met the requirements of
an in-substance debt defeasance and the refunded bond liability has been removed from the governmental
activities column of the statement of net position. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount
of the old debt by $82,005. This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the
remaining life of the refunded debt, which is shorter than the life of the new debt issued.

Changes in long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Amount Due

Balance Balance Within
June 30, 2017 Additions Reductions June 30, 2018 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Debt $1,755,000 $ (8580,000) $1,175,000 $580,000
Total Bonds Payable 1,755,000 (580,000) 1,175,000 580,000
Other Liabilities:
Obligations under Capital Leases 688,809 800,000 (226,410) 1,262,399 394,245
Compensated Absences
Payable 2,840,894 79,246 (277,462) 2,642,678
Net Pension Liability 45,174,987 (10,775,117) 34,399,870
Total 48,704,690 879,246 (11,278,989) 38,304,947 394,245
$50,459.,690 $879,246 ($11,858.,989) $39,479.,947 $974,245

A. Bonds and Loans Payable:

The Board issued General Obligation Bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and other capital assets.

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through referendums.

All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the
Board are general obligations bonds.
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Outstanding bonds payable at June 30, 2018, consisted of the following:

Principal
Amount Interest Date of Balance
Issue Issued Issue Date Rate Maturity June 30, 2018
School Improvement Bonds 2009 $5,550,000 09/09/2009 2.00%-5.00% 05/01/2020 $1,175,000

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows:

Year Total Principal Interest
2019 $635,812 $580,000 $55,812
2020 623,263 595,000 28,263

$1.259.075 $1.175.000 $84.075

B. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued

As of June 30, 2018, the Board has no authorized but not issued bonds.

C. Capital Leases

The District is leasing Chromebooks under a 48 month lease purchase agreement. In addition, the District
is leasing a Phone System under a 60 month lease purchase agreement. The following is a schedule of future
minimum lease payments for these capital leases, and the present value of the net minimum lease payments

at June 30, 2018:

Year Total Principal Interest
2019 $406,735 $394,245 $12,490
2020 406,736 384,824 21,912
2021 170,657 156,474 14,183
2022 170,656 161,065 9,591
2023 170,656 165,791 4,865
$1,325.440 $1,262.399 $63.041

Total minimum lease payments $1,325,440

Less: Amount representing interest (63,041)
Present value of lease payments $1,262.399
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NOTE 7. OPERATING LEASES:

The District has commitments to lease certain office equipment and a building for classroom use under
operating leases that expire in 2022. Total operating lease payments made during the year ended June 30,
2018 were $706,122. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2019 $695,040
2020 24,805
2021 24,805
2022 3,100

$747.750

NOTE 8. PENSION PLANS:

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees'
Retirement System or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute
and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State
of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New
Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes
the financial statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement
System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by writing to the
Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625 or reports can be accessed on
the internet at: http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrpts archive.htm.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established
as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death,
disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is
considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding situation, as under current statute,
all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system's
other related non-contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or
members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the
Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional and certified.
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NOTE 8. PENSION PLANS, (continued)

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides retirement, death and
disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after
25 years of service or under the disability provisions of TPAF. Members are fully vested for their own
contributions and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest
credited to the members' accounts.

The following represents the membership tiers for TPAF:

Tier Definition

Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

DA W=

Service retirement benefits of 1/55™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tiers
1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement
benefits of 1/60™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4 members upon
reaching age 62 and to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to
Tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of
service credit and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a
fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive
full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an
unreduced benefit from age 50 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is
available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement
age for the respective tier.

Public Employees'’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was
established as of January 1, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death,
disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees' Retirement System is
a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time employees
of the State of New Jersey or any county, municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the
employee is not required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or other state or
local jurisdiction.
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Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death and
disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after
25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55" of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tiers
1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement
benefits of 1/60™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier 4 members upon
reaching age 62 and to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to
Tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of
service credit and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a
fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive
full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an
unreduced benefit from age 50 to age 60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is
available to members who have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement
age for the respective tier.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program

Prudential Financial jointly administers the DCRP investments with the NJ Division of Pensions and
Benefits. If an employee is ineligible to enroll in the PERS or PFRS, the employee may be eligible to enroll
in the DCRP. DCRP provides eligible members with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement
benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting is immediate upon enrollment for
members of the DCRP.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly
available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of
the DCRP. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department of the
Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625-0295.
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Defined Contribution Retirement Program, (continued)

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Employee contributions are based
on percentages of 5.50% for DCRP of employees' annual compensation, as defined. The DCRP was
established July 1, 2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and expanded under the provisions
of Chapter 89, P.L. 2008. Employee contributions for DCRP are matched by a 3% employer contribution.

Contributions Requirements Fund Based Statements

The Board’s contribution to PERS and DCRP, equal to the required contributions for each year as reported
in the fund based statements, were as follows:

Year
Ending PERS DCRP
6/30/18 $1,384,300 $76,045
6/30/17 1,361,585 67,381
6/30/16 1,352,238 49,759

The State of New Jersey contribution to TPAF (paid on-behalf of the District) for normal and post retirement
benefits have been included in the fund-based statements as revenues and expenditures in accordance with
GASB 24, paragraphs 7 through 13, as follows:

Long-Term
Post-Retirement Disability
Year Pension Medical NCGI Insurance
Ending Contributions Contributions Premium Contributions
6/30/18 $6,580,457 $4,353,318 $159,691 $6,526
6/30/17 4,798,794 4,143,361 173,871 7,864

6/30/16 3,356,823 4,196,156 167,215

In addition, the post-retirement medical benefits are included in the district-wide financial statements.

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $3,411,027
during the year ended June 30, 2018 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF
members as calculated on their base salaries. This amount has been included in the fund-based statements
as revenues and expenditures in accordance with GASB 24, paragraphs 7 through 13.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION IN THE DISTRICT-WIDE
STATEMENTS PER - GASB NO. 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2018, the District had a liability of $34,399,870 for its proportionate share of the PERS net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating governmental
entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the District's proportion was 0.1477759118 percent,
which was a decrease of (0.0047540056) percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $2,676,430. At June 30,2018,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference in actual and expected experience $809,998 $
Changes of assumptions 6,930,388 6,904,980
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 234,240
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 1,402,805 1,452,813
District contributions subsequent to the measurement
date 1,457,332
Total $10,834.763 $8.357,793
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The $1,457,332 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school district
contributions subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2018, the plan
measurement date is June 30, 2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions (excluding changes in proportion) will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year ended June 30:
2018 $809,806
2019 1,222,017
2020 740,480
2021 (984,840)
2022 (717,817)

Changes in Proportion

The previous amounts do not include employer specific deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to changes in proportion. These amounts should be recognized (amortized) by each
employer over the average of the expected remaining service lives of all plan members, which is 5.48, 5.57,
5.72 and 6.44 years for 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 amounts, respectively.

Additional Information

Local Group Collective balances at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 are as follows:

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Collective deferred outflows of resources $6,424,455,842 $8,685,338,380
Collective deferred inflows of resources 5,700,625,981 870,133,595
Collective net pension liability 23,278,401,588 29,617,131,759
District's Proportion 0.1477759118%  0.1525299174%
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of July 1, 2016, which rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation 2.25 Percent
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.65-4.15 Percent (based on age)
Thereafter 2.65-5.15 Percent (based on age)
Investment Rate of Return 7.00 Percent

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014. It is likely that future experience will not
exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions,
the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the
larger the impact on future financial statements.

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retirement Mortality Table for male
and female active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males and
females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for females. In
addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a
generational approach based on the plans actuary’s modified MP-2014 projection scale. Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (setback
1 year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and a one year
static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements
and beneficiaries of former members provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of
2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary’s modified MP-2014 projection scale.
Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality
Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward 1 year for females).

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
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expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Absolute return/risk mitigation 5.00% 5.51%
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00%
U.S. Treasuries 3.00% 1.87%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78%
Public high yield 2.50% 6.82%
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private real asset 2.50% 11.83%
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23%
U.S. equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30, 2017. This single
blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
7.00% and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The
State employer contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local employers
contributed 100% of their actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan
members through 2040. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to projected benefit payments through 2040 and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit
payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

-61-



City of Hackensack School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 8. PENSION PLANS, (continued)

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 30,2017,
respectively, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the collective net pension
liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1- percentage-
point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2017

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
4.00% 5.00% 6.00%
District's proportionate share of
the pension liability $42,675,374 $34,399,870 $27,505,350

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). The financial
report may be accessed at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the State
in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are considered to be
in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a
nonemployer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the
plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or deferred outflows
or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local participating employers. However, the notes to
the financial statements of the local participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer
contributing entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local
participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District recognized at June 30,
2018 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:
District's proportionate share $ -0-
State's proportionate share
associated with the District 298,074,439

$298.074.439
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The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to
June 30, 2017. The net pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the
District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the proportion of the
TPAF net pension liability associated with the District was 0.4420921066%.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense and revenue of
$20,649,088 for contributions provided by the State in the District-Wide Financial Statements.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of July 1, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate 2.25%
Salary Increases:
2012-2021 Varies based on experience
Thereafter Varies based on experience
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%
Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the experience of TPAF members
reflecting mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 60-year average of Social Security data
from 1953 to 2013.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2015.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
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expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Absolute return/risk mitigation 5.00% 5.51%
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00%
U.S. Treasuries 3.00% 1.87%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78%
Public high yield 2.50% 6.82%
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private real asset 2.50% 11.83%
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23%
U.S. equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.25% and 3.22% as of June 30, 2017 and
2016, respectively. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% and 2.85% as of June 30,2017 and
2016, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the
contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 40% of the actuary determined
contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2036. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2036, and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total
pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero, consideration of potential
changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the District.

NOTE 9. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-
retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited
service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-
retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension
plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State employees and retired
educational employees. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance
with P.L. 1994 Chapter 62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis
to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 Chapter 126, which provides employer
paid health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service.

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated,
Title 52, Article 17.25 et. seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are found
in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code.

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB No. 75.

Employees covered by benefits terms. At June 30, 2017, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:

TPAF participant retirees:

As of June 30, 2017, there were 112,966 retirees receiving post-retirement medical
benefits, and the State Contributed $1.39 billion on their behalf.

-65-



City of Hackensack School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 9. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS: (continued)

PERS participant retirees:

The State paid $238.9 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 209,913 eligible retired members

in Fiscal Year 2017.
OPEB Liability:
District's proportionate share § -0-
State's proportionate share
associated with the District 183,851,793

$183.851,793

Actual Assumptions and Other Imputes

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation reported by the State in the State's Report
of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability for the State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee's Plan
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of
June 30, 2016 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016. The actuarial assumptions vary
for each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation
used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate 2.50%
TPAF/ABP PERS
Salary increases:
Through 2026 1.55-4.55% 2.15-4.15%
based on years based on age
of service
Thereafter 2.00 - 5.45% 3.15-5.15%
based on years based on age
of service
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Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Health Employee
Male/Female mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year
using the MP-2017 scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted
Health Annuitant Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the
central year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted
Disabled Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement projections from the central year
using the MP-2017 scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience studies for the periods July 1, 2012 — June 30, 2015, July 1, 2010 — June 30, 2013, and July 1,
2011 — June 30, 2014 for TPAF and PFRS, respectively.

(a) Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.9%
and decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical
benefits, the trend rate is 4.5%. For health maintenance organization (HMO) medical benefits, the
trend rate is initially 5.9% and decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. For
prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 10.5% decreasing to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after
eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage
trend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all future years.

(b) Discount Rate
The discount rate for June 30,2017 and 2016 was 3.58% and 2.85%, respectively. This represents the
municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond
Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average

rating of AA/Aa or higher.

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the OPEB liability is zero, consideration of potential changes
in the discount rate is not applicable to the District.

Sensitivity of the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:

Because the District's proportionate share of the OPEB liability is zero, consideration of potential changes
in the healthcare cost trend rates is not applicable to the District.

-67-



City of Hackensack School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 9. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS: (continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB.:

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the board of education/board of trustees recognized on-behalf OPEB
expense of $11,419,412 in the district-wide financial statements as determined by the State as the total
OPEB liability for benefits provided through a defined benefit OPEB plan that is not administered through
a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB No. 75 and in which there is a special funding
situation.

In accordance with GASB No. 75, the City of Hackensack School District's proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero; therefore, there is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate share of deferred

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.

NOTE 10. DEFERRED COMPENSATION:

The Board offers its employees a choice of the following deferred compensation plans created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below,
permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans
are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan
administrators are as follows:

AXA Equitable

MASS Mutual/Duncan Financial Lincoln Investments
AIG Valic

MetLife

NOTE 11. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property,
liability, student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the
Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been
any settlements in excess of insurance coverages.
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NOTE 11. RISK MANAGEMENT: (continued)

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the
District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former
employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the
State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the
State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s expendable trust fund for the current and
previous two years:

Interest Earnings/

District Employee Amount Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions  Reimbursed Balance
2017-2018 $1,396 $84,289 $126,136 $217,393
2016-2017 740 81,338 95,985 257,844
2015-2016 1,062 79,149 151,780 271,751

NOTE 12. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT:

A capital reserve account was established by the City of Hackensack Board of Education by inclusion of
$1,100,125 on October 12, 2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in
subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is
included in the general fund annual budget. There existed a balance of $7,540,712 in the capital reserve
account at June 30, 2018.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long
Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the
balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes
or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item
appropriation amounts, or both. A district may also appropriate additional amount when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question
at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-
14.1(g), the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects in its approved LRFP.
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NOTE 12. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT: (continued)

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2017 $6,073,678
Deposits:
Interest Earnings 28,384
Capital Outlay Unexpended Balance 1,000,000
Board Resolution - June 26, 2018 3,000,000
10,102,062
Decreased by:
Budget Appropriations 2,561,350
Ending balance, June 30, 2018 $7.540,712

The balance in the capital reserve amount at June 30, 2018 does not exceed the balance of local support costs
of uncompleted capital projects in its LRFP.

NOTE 13. EMERGENCY RESERVE:

The emergency reserve is used to accumulate funds in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18 A:7F-41¢(1) to finance
unanticipated general fund expenditures required for a thorough and efficient education. Unanticipated
means reasonably unforeseeable and shall not include additional costs caused by poor planning. The
maximum balance permitted at any time in this reserve is the greater of $250,000 or 1% of the general fund
budget not to exceed one million dollars. Deposits may be made to the emergency reserve account by board
resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line item appropriation or both.
Withdrawals from the reserve require the approval of the commissioner unless the withdrawal is necessary
to meet an increase in total health care costs in excess of four percent.

The activity of the emergency reserve for the July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2017 $2,310

_—n -

Ending balance, June 30, 2018 $2.310

NOTE 14. MAINTENANCE RESERVE:

The maintenance reserve is used to accumulate funds for the required maintenance of a facility in accordance
with the EFCRA (N.J.A.A. 18A:7G-9). EFCFA as amended by P.L. 2004, c. 73 (S1701). Districts may
increase the balance in the maintenance reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes or by deposit of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation by board
resolution at year end.
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NOTE 14. MAINTENANCE RESERVE: (continued)

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2017 $1,005,060
Deposits:
Interest Earnings 5,246
Board Resolution - June 26, 2018 500,000
1,510,306
Decreased by:
Budget Appropriations 500,000
Ending balance, June 30, 2018 $1.010,306

NOTE 15. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED:

General Fund [Exhibit B-1] - Ofthe $16,410,328 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2018, $2,133,044
isreserved for encumbrances; $4,864,922 is reserved as excess surplus in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18 A:7F-
7; (81,914,090 of the total reserve for excess surplus has been appropriated and included as anticipated
revenue for the year ending June 30, 2019); $7,540,712 has been reserved in the Capital Reserve Account;
$1,010,306 has been reserved in the Maintenance Reserve; $2,310 has been reserved in the Emergency
Reserve; $65,640 of unreserved and undesignated has been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue
for the year ended June 30, 2019; and $793,394 is unreserved and undesignated.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund balance at June 30, 2018 of $-0- is unreserved and
undesignated.

NOTE 16. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS:

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus is a
required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing
Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the
fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance
in their subsequent years’ budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2018 is $4,864,922 of which
$2,950,832 is the result of current year operations.

NOTE 17. INVENTORY:

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Food $15,752
Supplies 5,482
$21.234
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NOTE 17. INVENTORY: (continued)

The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodity portion of the Food Service Fund
inventory consists of food donated by USDA. Itis valued at estimated market prices by USDA. The amount
of unused commodities at year end is reported on Schedule A as deferred revenue.

NOTE 18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

Grant Programs - The school district participates in federally assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The school district is
potentially liable for expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs.
Management is not aware of any material items of noncompliance which would result in the disallowance
of program expenditures.

Litigation - The District is a party defendant in some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a school district
of its size and scope of operation. In the opinion of the Board's Attorney the potential claims against the
District not covered by insurance policies would not materially affect the financial condition of the District.

IRS Penalty - The District was notified on August 7, 2017 that they did not file certain information returns
correctly as required by Internal Revenue Code Section 6721 for the 2015 tax period. A penalty in the
amount of $255,580 has been proposed against the District. On August 10,2017, November 14, 2017 and
February 21, 2018, the District responded to the Internal Revenue Service regarding the proposed penalty
disagreeing with the claim and requesting a waiver of the penalty for reasonable cause under Section
301.6724-1 Reasonable Cause, paragraph (b). As of the date of the audit, no response has been received.

NOTE 19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

The District has evaluated subsequent events through January 31, 2019, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and no other items were noted for disclosure.
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REVENUES:
General Fund:
Revenues from Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Tuition From Individuals
Tuition From Other LEAs Within the State
Interest Earned on Capital Reserve Funds
Interest Earned on Maintenance Reserve
Interest Earned on Emergency Reserve
Unrestricted Miscellaneous Revenues
Total - Local Sources
Revenues from State Sources:
Categorical Special Education Aid
Equalization Aid
Categorical Security Aid
Categorical Transportation Aid
PARCC Readiness Aid
Per Pupil Growth Aid
Professional Learning Community Aid
Lead Testing for Schools Aid
Extraordinary Aid
On-behalf TPAF Pension and Post Retirement
Medical Contributions (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF Pension (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF NCGI Premium (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF LTDI
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions (non-budgeted)
Total - State Sources
Revenues from Federal Sources:
Special Education Medicaid Initiative
Medicaid Administrative Claiming (MAC)
Total - Federal Sources
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Current Expense:
Regular Programs - Instruction
Preschool - Salaries of Teachers
Kindergarten - Salaries of Teachers
Grades 1-5 - Salaries of Teachers
Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers
Grades 9-12 - Salaries of Teachers
Regular Programs - Home Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers
Purchased Professional-Educational Services
Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects
TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAMS - INSTRUCTION

SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION
Learning and/or Language Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies
Textbooks
Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities
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Exhibit C-1
HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Budget
Original Transfers/ Final Variance
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual
81,256,564 81,256,564 81,256,564
20,000 20,000 20,291 291
8,446,275 8,446,275 7,630,749 (815,526)
9,000 9,000 28,384 19,384
1,000 1,000 5,246 4,246
50 50 (50)
400,000 400,000 973,876 573,876
90,132,889 90,132,889 89,915,110 (217,779)
2,875,902 2,875,902 2,875,902
9,386,004 2,008,975 11,394,979 11,394,979
424,121 424,121 424,121
120,857 120,857 120,857
51,290 51,290 51,290
51,290 51,290 51,290
54,210 54,210 54,210
3,850 3,850
900,000 900,000 909,865 9,865
4,353,318 4,353,318
6,580,457 6,580,457
159,691 159,691
6,526 6,526
3,411,027 3,411,027
13,863,674 2,008,975 15,872,649 30,397,383 14,524,734
171,154 171,154 124,651 (46,503)
40,719 40,719
171,154 171,154 165,370 (5,784)
104,167,717 2,008,975 106,176,692 120,477,863 14,301,171
76,478 76,478 27,465 49,013
1,121,915 1,121,915 1,080,232 41,683
9,950,042 (19,500) 9,930,542 9,538,912 391,630
6,284,029 137,866 6,421,895 6,421,895
10,169,353 289,445 10,458,798 9,762,875 695,923
16,116 40,570 56,686 49,447 7,239
18,200 18,200 18,027 173
414,827 414,827 362,853 51,974
931,360 931,360 926,342 5,018
127,630 22,000 149,630 140,406 9,224
1,203,076 (8,913) 1,194,163 1,111,528 82,635
1,612,520 198,814 1,811,334 1,583,067 228,267
234,082 (133,772) 100,310 67,138 33,172
11,572 (6,100) 5,472 250 5,222
32,171,200 520,410 32,691,610 31,090,437 1,601,173
921,100 2,000 923,100 909,119 13,981
737,753 737,753 679,664 58,089
58,855 (13,998) 44,857 38,507 6,350
2,000 2,000 2,000
1,719,708 (11,998) 1,707,710 1,627,290 80,420
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Exhibit C-1
HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Budget
Original Transfers/ Final Variance
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual
Behavioral Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers 352,195 352,195 319,376 32,819
Other Salaries for Instruction 92,230 4,500 96,730 93,978 2,752
General Supplies 9,525 9,525 1,847 7,678
Textbooks 2,000 2,000 2,000
Total Behavioral Disabilities 455,950 4,500 460,450 415,201 45,249
Multiple Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers 876,015 55,000 931,015 918,159 12,856
Other Salaries for Instruction 477,493 28,000 505,493 501,331 4,162
General Supplies 51,000 51,000 50,438 562
Textbooks 700 700 580 120
Total Multiple Disabilities 1,405,208 83,000 1,488,208 1,470,508 17,700
Resource Room/Resource Center:
Salaries of Teachers 4,345,371 96,000 4,441,371 4,439,474 1,897
Other Salaries for Instruction 1,816,261 1,816,261 1,718,076 98,185
General Supplies 58,675 58,675 22,954 35,721
Textbooks 2,000 2,000 2,000
Total Resource Room/Resource Center 6,222,307 96,000 6,318,307 6,180,504 137,803
Preschool Disabilities - Part-Time:
Salaries of Teachers 316,225 (316,225)
Other Salaries for Instruction 245,566 (245,566)
General Supplies 8,000 (8,000)
Other Objects 1,500 (1,500)
Total Preschool Disabilities - Part Time 571,291 (571,291)
Preschool Disabilities- Full-Time:
Salaries of Teachers 404,260 334,225 738,485 732,753 5,732
Other Salaries for Instruction 449,358 318,566 767,924 765,622 2,302
General Supplies 11,500 22,000 33,500 32,992 508
Other Objects 1,500 1,500 3,000 3,000
Total Preschool Disabilities - Full-Time 866,618 676,291 1,542,909 1,534,367 8,542
Home Instruction
Salaries of Teachers 60,000 13,925 73,925 73,925
Purchased Professional - Educational Services 20,000 20,000 11,656 8,344
Total Home Instruction 80,000 13,925 93,925 85,581 8,344
TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION 11,321,082 290,427 11,611,509 11,313,451 298,058
Bilingual Education - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers 2,097,142 2,097,142 2,054,828 42,314
Other Salaries for Instruction 135,483 135,483 116,445 19,038
General Supplies 3,068 4,269 7,337 5,168 2,169
Textbooks 17,345 (3,873) 13,472 363 13,109
Total Bilingual Education - Instruction 2,253,038 396 2,253,434 2,176,804 76,630
School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities - Instruction
Salaries 190,551 190,551 150,681 39,870
Purchased Services (300-500 series) 10,750 10,750 5,007 5,743
Supplies and Materials 19,350 19,350 6,915 12,435
Other Objects 1,200 1,200 705 495
Total School-Sponsored Cocurricular Activities - Instruction 221,851 221,851 163,308 58,543
School-Sponsored Athletics - Instruction
Salaries 907,948 25,000 932,948 891,443 41,505
Purchased Services (300-500 series) 407,362 1,061 408,423 403,938 4,485
Supplies and Materials 111,670 3,325 114,995 111,243 3,752
Other Objects 46,331 46,331 43,837 2,494
Total School-Sponsored Athletics - Instruction 1,473,311 29,386 1,502,697 1,450,461 52,236
Summer School - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers 39,660 39,660 21,154 18,506
Total Summer School Programs Instruction 39,660 39,660 21,154 18,506
Instructional Alternative Ed Programs - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers 163,200 (8,061) 155,139 90,325 64,814
Other Salaries of Instruction 20,000 20,000 20,000
Total Instructional Alternative Ed Programs - Instruction 183,200 (8,061) 175,139 90,325 84,814
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Instructional Alternative Ed Programs - Support Services
Salaries of Teachers
Total Instructional Alternative Ed Programs - Support Services

TOTAL INSTRUCTION

Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction:
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State - Regular
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State - Special
Tuition to County Voc. School Dist. - Regular
Tuition to County Voc. School Dist. - Special
Tuition to CSSD & Regional Day Schools
Tuition to Private Schools for the Handicapped - Within State
Tuition - State Facilities
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction:
Undistributed Expend. - Attend. & Social Work
Salaries
Total Undistributed Expend. - Attend. & Social Work
Undist. Expend. - Health Services
Salaries
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies and Materials
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services
Undist. Expend. - Speech, OT, PT & Related Sves.
Salaries
Purchased Prof. Services-Educational Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Total Undist. Expend. - Speech, OT, PT, & Related Sves
Undist. Expend. - Other Supp. Serv. Students-Extra Serv.
Salaries
Purchased Prof. Services-Educational Services
Supplies and Materials
Total Undist. Expend. - Other Supp. Serv. Students-Extra Sves.
Undist. Expend. - Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
Supplies and Materials
Total Undist. Expend. - Guidance
Undist. Expend. - Child Study Teams
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Prof. Services-Educational Services
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Misc. Pur Services (400-500 Series O/than Resid Costs)
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Total Undist. Expend. - Child Study Teams
Undist. Expend. - Improvement of Instructional Services
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Other Purch Services (400-500)
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects
Total Undist. Expend. - Improvement of Inst. Services
Undist. Expend. - Educational Media Serv./Sch. Library
Salaries
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purch Services (400-500)
Supplies and Materials
Total Undist. Expend. - Educational Media Serv./Sch. Library
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Exhibit C-1
HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Budget
Original Transfers/ Final Variance
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual
10,000 10,000 10,000
10,000 10,000 10,000
47,673,342 832,558 48,505,900 46,305,940 2,199,960
36,205 100,000 136,205 52,220 83,985
1,084,034 (131,647) 952,387 889,664 62,723
424,740 424,740 390,666 34,074
555,626 (51,215) 504,411 448,536 55,875
2,880,790 217,345 3,098,135 2,905,732 192,403
2,957,374 (336,130) 2,621,244 2,245,728 375,516
68,417 68,417 68,417
8,007,186 (201,647) 7,805,539 7,000,963 804,576
10,000 3,000 13,000 12,500 500
10,000 3,000 13,000 12,500 500
990,307 (2,673) 987,634 863,543 124,091
54,980 54,980 32,592 22,388
23,485 23,485 21,588 1,897
11,170 11,170 9,459 1,711
1,079,942 (2,673) 1,077,269 927,182 150,087
1,637,870 1,637,870 1,591,342 46,528
582,772 (10,400) 572,372 539,696 32,676
6,575 6,575 5,989 586
1,000 1,000 1,000
2,228,217 (10,400) 2,217,817 2,137,027 80,790
1,082,866 1,082,866 847,439 235,427
742,576 212,047 954,623 928,242 26,381
8,510 8,510 8,461 49
1,833,952 212,047 2,045,999 1,784,142 261,857
1,246,031 (60,000) 1,186,031 1,179,120 6,911
124,029 52,000 176,029 170,057 5,972
36,300 1,585 37,885 27,859 10,026
2,800 2,800 1,984 816
9,322 (800) 8,522 6,134 2,388
1,418,482 (7,215) 1,411,267 1,385,154 26,113
2,928,727 (102,000) 2,826,727 2,821,413 5314
313,713 2,000 315,713 314,634 1,079
162,000 162,000 109,199 52,801
20,000 20,000 18,009 1,991
3,500 3,500 1,797 1,703
66,500 (719) 65,781 60,062 5,719
2,400 600 3,000 2,870 130
3,496,840 (100,119) 3,396,721 3,327,984 68,737
978,159 978,159 912,367 65,792
396,012 35,000 431,012 418,379 12,633
135,100 (102,500) 32,600 1,238 31,362
3,000 3,000 3,000
20,916 20,916 15,281 5,635
9,205 9,205 3,978 5,227
2,420 2,420 760 1,660
1,544,812 (67,500) 1,477,312 1,352,003 125,309
534,921 4,000 538,921 534,181 4,740
6,550 (1,585) 4,965 4,965
31,000 (1,105) 29,895 19,330 10,565
33,885 1,100 34,985 29,080 5,905
606,356 2,410 608,766 582,591 26,175

-75-



Page 4 of 6

Exhibit C-1
HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Budget
Original Transfers/ Final Variance
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual
Undist. Expend. - Instructional Staff Training Serv.
Purchased Professional - Educational Services 20,000 20,000 16,122 3,878
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 50,970 1,205 52,175 35,658 16,517
Supplies and Materials 3,000 3,000 855 2,145
Total Undist. Expend. - Instructional Staff Training Serv. 73,970 1,205 75,175 52,635 22,540
Undist. Expend. - Supp. Serv. - General Administration
Salaries 453,350 48,790 502,140 502,139 1
Legal Services 196,000 196,000 184,865 11,135
Audit Fees 46,000 46,000 45,000 1,000
Architectural/Engineering Services 5,000 5,000 5,000
Other Purchased Professional Services 79,585 (16,098) 63,487 60,301 3,186
Communications/Telephone 225,180 (1,270) 223,910 213,970 9,940
BOE Other Purchased Services 6,406 6,406 5,391 1,015
Misc. Purch Services (400-500 Series) 36,000 (576) 35,424 34,416 1,008
General Supplies 12,177 (2,400) 9,777 8,338 1,439
BOE In-House Training/Meeting Supplies 2,500 2,500 2,500
Misc. Expenditures 8,220 600 8,820 8,750 70
BOE Membership Dues and Fees 28,063 28,063 28,063
Total Undist. Expend. - Supp. Serv. - General Administration 1,098,481 29,046 1,127,527 1,091,233 36,294
Undist. Expend. - Support Serv. - School Administration
Salaries of Principals/Assistant Principals 2,919,363 173,289 3,092,652 3,092,652
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 74,985 74,985 74,985
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 939,147 70,000 1,009,147 1,007,850 1,297
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series) 7,906 (360) 7,546 2,545 5,001
Supplies and Materials 30,046 (2,061) 27,985 10,518 17,467
Other Objects 8,483 3,621 12,104 6,712 5,392
Total Undist. Expend. - Support Serv. - School Administration 3,904,945 319,474 4,224,419 4,195,262 29,157
Undist. Expend. - Support Serv. - Central Services
Salaries 869,674 (67,500) 802,174 800,607 1,567
Purchased Professional Services 3,000 3,000 3,000
Purchased Technical Services 18,335 10,000 28,335 28,070 265
Misc. Pur Services (400-500 Series) 7,600 7,600 3,595 4,005
Supplies and Materials 14,500 (1,669) 12,831 9,283 3,548
Miscellaneous Expenditures 8,000 (1,000) 7,000 4,055 2,945
Total Undist. Expend. - Support Serv. - Central Services 921,109 (60,169) 860,940 845,610 15,330
Undist. Expend. - Admin Info. Technology
Information Technology
Salaries 581,911 46,673 628,584 628,584
Purchased Professional Services 14,400 14,400 14,400
Other Purch Services (400-500 Series) 319,607 (13,030) 306,577 302,074 4,503
Supplies and Materials 11,925 11,925 4,108 7,817
Total Undist. Expend. - Support Serv. - Administrative
Information Technology 927,843 33,643 961,486 949,166 12,320
Undist. Expend. - Required Maint. for School Facilities (261)
Salaries 306,442 (41,925) 264,517 238,652 25,865
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 732,290 (26,527) 705,763 619,944 85,819
General Supplies 143,629 (2,341) 141,288 96,504 44,784
Undist. Expend. - Required Maint. for School Facilities 1,182,361 (70,793) 1,111,568 955,100 156,468
Undist. Expend. - Oth. Oper. & Maint. of Plant (262)
Salaries 3,084,957 134,000 3,218,957 3,186,698 32,259
Salaries of Non-Instructional Aides 300,864 (287,000) 13,864 5,761 8,103
Purchased Prof. And Tech. Services 127,420 127,420 100,493 26,927
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 448,651 (112,440) 336,211 163,136 173,075
Rental of Land & Bldg. Oth. Than Lease Pur Agrmt. 692,528 692,528 664,483 28,045
Other Purchased Property Services 140,225 140,225 136,095 4,130
Insurance 518,145 518,145 487,498 30,647
Miscellaneous Purchased Services 10,225 (200) 10,025 5,990 4,035
General Supplies 368,404 15,341 383,745 364,695 19,050
Energy (Natural Gas) 300,000 200,000 500,000 493,669 6,331
Energy (Energy and Electricity) 775,000 (107,560) 667,440 664,440 3,000
Other Objects 700 700 100 600
Total Undist. Expend. - Other Oper. & Maint. Of Plant 6,767,119 (157,859) 6,609,260 6,273,058 336,202
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Undist. Expend. - Care & Upkeep of Grounds (263)
Salaries
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
General Supplies
Total Undist. Expend. - Care & Upkeep of Grounds
Undist. Expend. - Security
Salaries
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
General Supplies
Total Undist. Expend. - Security
Undist. Expend. - Student Transportation Services (270)
Salaries for Pupil Trans (Other than Bet. Home & Sch. )
Management fee- ECS&CTSA Trans.
Other Purchased Prof. and Tech. Services
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services
Contract Services - Aid in lieu Pymts - Charter School
Contract Services (Between Home & School)-Vendors
Contract Services (Other than Between Home & School)-Vendors
Contract Services (Between Home & School)-Joint Agreements
Contract Services (Sp. Ed. Students)-Joint Agreements
Contract Services (Spl. Ed. Students)-ESCs&CTSAs
Miscellaneous Purchased Services - Transportation
Other Objects
Total Undist. Expend. - Student Transportation Services
UNALLOCATED BENEFITS
Social Security Contributions
Other Retirement Contributions-PERS
Other Retirement Contributions-Regular
Unemployment Compensation
‘Workmen's Compensation
Health Benefits
Tuition Reimbursement
Other Employee Benefits
Unused Sick Payment to Terminated/Retired Staff
TOTAL UNALLOCATED BENEFITS
On-behalf TPAF Pension and Post Retirement
Medical Contributions (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF Pension (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF NCGI Premium (non-budgeted)
On-behalf TPAF LTDI
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions (non-budgeted)
TOTAL ON-BEHALF CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT EXPENSE

Equipment
Regular Programs - Instruction:
Grades 6-8
Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction
Undistributed Expenditures - Central Services
Undistributed Expenditures - Required Maintenance for School Fac.
Undistributed Expenditures - Care & Upkeep of Grounds

Page 5of 6

Exhibit C-1
HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Budget
Original Transfers/ Final Variance
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual
136,599 136,599 132,553 4,046
43,000 43,000 16,344 26,656
42,000 (2,370) 39,630 29,434 10,196
221,599 (2,370) 219,229 178,331 40,898
137,127 137,127 137,126 1
284,803 (10,000) 274,803 241,907 32,896
150,600 150,600 127,270 23,330
81,910 (10,400) 71,510 69,029 2,481
654,440 (20,400) 634,040 575,332 58,708
55,000 55,000 45,965 9,035
114,000 (108,500) 5,500 5,500
2,500 2,500 1,339 1,161
20,500 7,000 27,500 27,083 417
20,000 20,000 12,865 7,135
1,174 (1,174)
412,429 (29,484) 382,945 309,009 73,936
1,768 1,768 1,768
162,000 (58,006) 103,994 103,494 500
1,782,000 201,208 1,983,208 1,982,598 610
2,000 2,000 1,000 1,000
6,000 (5,046) 954 635 319
2,579,371 5,998 2,585,369 2,483,988 101,381
1,475,970 1,475,970 1,128,735 347,235
1,448,253 1,448,253 1,306,155 142,098
55,000 33,000 88,000 76,045 11,955
25,000 25,000 25,000
674,902 674,902 532,026 142,876
12,720,386 12,720,386 12,000,760 719,626
5,000 2,800 7,800 7,250 550
206,970 87,000 293,970 176,506 117,464
120,000 (120,000)
16,731,481 2,800 16,734,281 15,227,477 1,506,804
4,353,318 (4,353,318)
6,580,457 (6,580,457)
159,691 (159,691)
6,526 (6,526)
3,411,027 (3,411,027)
14,511,019 (14,511,019)
16,731,481 2,800 16,734,281 29,738,496 (13,004,215)
55,288,506 (91,522) 55,196,984 65,847,757 (10,650,773)
102,961,848 741,036 103,702,884 112,153,697 (8,450,813)
3,997 3,997 3,997
65,322 20,116 85,438 60,564 24,874
410,650 410,650 409,531 1,119
6,000 55,025 61,025 61,010 15
60,000 2,370 62,370 62,370
541,972 81,508 623,480 593,475 30,005

Total Equipment
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Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Legal Services
Architectural/Engineering Services
Construction Services
Land and Improvements
Assessment for Debt Service on SDA Funding
Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services

Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases (non-budgeted)
Various Equipment
Total Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases (non-budgeted)

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY
Transfer of Funds to Charter Schools

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources/(Uses):
Capital Leases (non-budgeted)
Operating Transfers Out:
Transfers to Cover Deficit (Enterprise Fund)
Special Revenue Fund - Preschool Education Aid
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses):

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Page 6 of 6

Recapitulation of Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Adjustment for Prior Year Encumbrances
Increase in Capital Reserve:

Principal

Interest Deposit to Capital Reserve
Increase in Emergency Reserve:

Interest Deposit to Emergency Reserve
Increase in Maintenance Reserve:

Principal

Interest Deposit to Maintenance Reserve

‘Withdrawal from Capital Reserve - Excess Cost & Other Cap Projec

‘Withdrawal from Maintenance Reserve
Budgeted Fund Balance

Recapitulation:
Restricted Fund Balance:
Excess Surplus - Current Year
Excess Surplus - Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures
Capital Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
Emergency Reserve
Assigned Fund Balance:
Year-end Encumbrances
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Unassigned Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance per Governmental Funds (Budgetary)
Recapitulation to Governmental Fund Statement (GAAP):
Less: Last State Aid Payment not Recognized GAAP Basis
Total Fund Balance per Governmental Funds (GAAP)

Exhibit C-1
HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
Budget
Original Transfers/ Final Variance
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual
85,415 30,000 115,415 101,328 14,087
3,491,154 912,961 4,404,115 856,150 3,547,965
243,470 243,470 243,470
37,812 37,812 37,812
3,614,381 1,186,431 4,800,812 995,290 3,805,522
800,000 (800,000)
800,000 (800,000)
4,156,353 1,267,939 5,424,292 2,388,765 3,035,527
3,343,401 3,343,401 3,287,937 55,464
110,461,602 2,008,975 112,470,577 117,830,399 (5,359,822)
(6,293,885) (6,293,885) 2,647,464 8,941,349
800,000 (800,000)
(8,726) (8,726) (8,726)

(411,499) (411,499) (411,499)

(420,225) (420,225) 388,501 (808,726)
(6,714,110) (6,714,110) 3,035,965 8,132,623
14,649,452 14,649,452 14,649,452

7,935,342 7,935,342 17,685,417 8,132,623
(1,598,917) (1,598,917) (1,598,917)
4,000,000 (4,000,000)
9,000 9,000 28,384 (19,384)
50 50 50
500,000 (500,000)
1,000 1,000 5,246 (4,246)
(2,561,350) (2,561,350) (2,561,350)

(500,000) (500,000) (500,000)

(2,063,893) (2,063,893) 3,162,602 12,656,203
(6,714,110) (6,714,110) 3,035,965 8,132,623

2,950,832

1,914,090

7,540,712

1,010,306

2,310

2,133,044

65,640

2,068,483

17,685,417

1,275,089

16,410,328

-78-



- 667 111 667 111 - 667 111

- 667 111 667 111 - 667 111
8L9°TSY YIS TH6'Y T61°S6E°S WY IEI’T 0SS°€9T Y
95971 SL8°T 1€S°L1 SL8°T 95971
95971 SL8°T 1€S°L1 SL8T 95971
851071 Ov8 ILET 866 T1S°1 $€5°06C YOr 12T 1
wSLY €s1°TI S0691 S06°91

¥8T°SE 877201 TELLET SYTIT L8Y9TT
9Ts's SHSSL 1L0°18 9LT'0E $68°0S
8€8°01 60%°9 LYTLT 1€C 910°L1
$69°91 PSH691 871981 87559 009°0C1
PSI°L S69°9%1 6V8°ESH SLY 0PI PLEETE
016°6S 9€1°6SS 970°619 #S6°S1 760°€09
¥98°L6T 66L°L9S°€ £99°698°¢ €€T'8¢8 0€F°LT0°E
80S°€T [T 0T8°€E 0Tr've 00%°6

¥4 1L9°9 7699 7699

¥T8°ST S86°LYE 60S°€LE 085°€81 626°681
9€L°S9 89 7L9°1 YOTOVL T L8¥80% LILTEET
81618 THEYLI 097°9S¢ 206081 85€SL
90%°9C S0S°08¢ 116°90€ ¥I8°'St L80°19T
1SLYL 9IS €LOT L9T8PI‘T (TLotn) 6£6°6ST°1
(8L9°TSH) ST0‘IESY €69°€86°Y THYIET°T 1S0°7S8°€
($TL'89€) 719°68T°¢ 8€€°859°C 606°86L 6T7°6S8°C
(rst'18) 107 14C1 S68°TTEl €€T0EE TT9°T66
(00520 - 00S°C 00S°C

EEQ{ 0] EE q _mﬁuo{. uum—u:m m.-ﬁvgumﬁﬁ—u{ uum—u:m

QoueLIR A [eurg /SIoJsuer], [eursuiQ
108png

T-D nquxy

810T ‘0€ dunp papuy IedX [edsL]
puny dnudAdY [enadg
JMmpayds uostiedwo)) Arepaspng
NOILVONdd 40 AddVO4d MIDVSNIMOVH

(s3s()) sd2anog Sunueur YO pue saImpuadxy
(19pu()) J9AQ SINUIANY JO (LOUIIYI(]) SSIIXY

(sas)) $d2anog SudueUL] YO [€I0L

PIV UONEINPH [00YDSAI] - pun,j [eIOUD)
uf 1eysuel], Suneredo
(s3s()) $a21n0g SunuUeUL] YO

samyipuadxy [ejo],
*AJS *Jsu0d pue uonisinboe sanioE] (€0,

yuowdiby [euononnsuy
*AJ9S *)su0d pue uonismboe sanIqOE ]

$31A.19s J10ddns [ejo ],

$102[q0 Y0
s[eLdeA % sarjddng
(SO110S ()(S-00F) SIITAIOS PIseydINJ YO
[oAeI],
SOOIAIOS [BUOTIEONDH - [EUOISSAJOIJ PASBYOING
sjijouag dokojdwy - SOIIAIS [BUOSIdJ
s1030011(J WeIS01d JO SaLIe[es

:$991A198 J10ddng

uonINIsul [e)0],

$102[q0 12910
SY00qIXd],
soiddng erouon
(SOL19S ()(S-00F) SIITAILS PIseydINJ YO
SOOIAIDG [BOTUNDI ], PUE [BUOISSIJOI] PISLYIINJ
uondNISU] 10§ SOLIE[RS Y0
SIOUORI ], JO SALIE[RS
suonINNsuy
SSTANLIANAIXH

SINUIANY [€I0 ],

S92INOG [LIOPI]

S20IN0S 918IS

S20IN0G [890]
SSHONTATI

-79-



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Note to Required Supplementary Information - Part 11

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule [C-1]&[C-2]

Difference - budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized.

Prior Year

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the
current year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes.

The last state aid payment is recognized as revenue for budgetary
purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not recognize
this revenue until the subsequent year when the state
recognizes the related expense (GASB 33).

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. [B-2]

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the [C-1]&[C-2]
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes.
Current Year
Prior Year

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds [B-2]
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Exhibit C-3

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund
120,477,863 4,531,015
9,645
1,056,414
(1,275,089)
120,259,188 4,540,660
117,830,399 4,942,514
9,645
117,830,399 4,952,159
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Note to Required Schedules of Supplementary Information - Part IT1

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

Change in benefit terms

Change in assumptions

None

The calculation of the discount rate used to measure the total
pension liability is dependent upon the long-term expected rate

of return, and the municipal bond index rate. There was a change

in the municipal bond index rate from the prior measurement date
(2.85%) to the current measurement date (3.58%), resulting in a
change in the discount rate from 3.98% to 5.00%. This change in the
discount rate is considered to be a change in actuarial assumptions
under GASBS No. 68.

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

Change in benefit terms

Change in assumptions

The calculation of the discount rate used to measure the total
pension liability is dependent upon the long-term expected rate

of return, and the municipal bond index rate. There was a change

in the municipal bond index rate from the prior measurement date
(2.85%) to the current measurement date (3.58%), resulting in a
change in the discount rate from 3.22% to 4.25%. This change in the
discount rate is considered to be a change in actuarial assumptions
under GASBS No. 68.

Exhibit L-4



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Schedule of Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Changes in the District's Proportionate Share of the State OPEB Liability
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Total OPEB Liability

Service Costs

Interest on Total OPEB Liability

Changes in Assumptions

Gross Benefit Payments

Contribution from the Member

Net Changes in total Share of OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning

Total OPEB Liability - Ending

District's Proportionate Share of OPEB Liability
State's Proportionate Share of OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability - Ending

District's Covered Employee Payroll

Districts' Proportionate Share of the

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of its
Covered Payroll

Notes to Schedule:

$

2018

8,179,939
5,836,471
(24,707,925)
(4,258,398)

156,805

(14,793,108)

$

198,644,901

183,851,793

183,851,793

183,851,793

58,179,470

0%

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria inparagraph 4 of GASB 75.

Change in benefit terms None

Change in assumptions

Assumptions used in calculating the OPEB liability are presented
in Note 8.

* GASB requires that ten years of information be presented. However, since fiscal year 2018 was the first year of

GASB 75 implementation ten years is not presented. Each year thereafter, an additional year will be included until ten

years of data is presented.
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Preschool Education Aid
Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Expenditures:
Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchased Professional-Educational Services
Other Purchased Services (400-500 series)
General Supplies

Total instruction

Support services:
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional - Educational Services
Supplies and Materials

Total support services
Facility Acquisition and
Construction Services:

Instructional Equipment

Total expenditures

District Wide Total

Budget Actual Variance
597,950 585,113 12,837
301,087 275,572 25,515
3,000 3,000
30,720 30,664 56
41,327 40,456 871
974,084 931,805 42,2779
3,500 3,500

249,485 249,485
23,500 22,530 970
5,000 3,622 1,378
281,485 275,637 5,848

2,875 2,875
1,258,444 1,210,317 48,127

Summary of Location Totals

Total Revised 2017-18 Preschool Education Aid
Add: Actual Carryover (June 30, 2017)

Add: Budgeted Transfer from the General Fund 2017-18

Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2017-18 Budget
Less: 2017-18 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid (Including

prior year budgeted carryover)

Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2018

Add: June 30, 2018 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid

2017-18 Carryover - Preschool Education Aid/Preschool

2017-18 Preschool Education Aid Carryover
Budgeted for Preschool Programs 2018-19.

826,909
20,036

411,499

1,258,444

1,258,444

48,127

48,127
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Exhibit G-1

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Combining Statement of Net Position
Enterprise Funds

June 30,2018
Food
Service
Program Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 695,473 695,473
Accounts receivable:
State 5,656 5,656
Federal 430,502 430,502
Other 17,581 17,581
Inventories 21,234 21,234
Total current assets 1,170,446 1,170,446
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Building and building improvements 188,123 188,123
Equipment 493,389 493,389
Less accumulated depreciation (354,933) (354,933)
Total capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) 326,579 326,579
Total assets 1,497,025 1,497,025
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 190,258 190,258
Total Liabilities 190,258 190,258
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets net of
related debt 326,579 326,579
Unrestricted 980,188 980,188
Total net assets 1,306,767 1,306,767
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Exhibit G-2

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Enterprise Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Food
Service
Program Totals
Operating revenues:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs 290,244 290,244
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs 136,979 136,979
Total operating revenues 427,223 427,223
Operating expenses:
Cost of food - reimbursable programs 978,952 978,952
Cost of food - non-reimbursable programs 47,740 47,740
Salaries 952,714 952,714
Supplies and materials 96,330 96,330
Employee benefits 150,466 150,466
Depreciation 31,172 31,172
Repairs and other expenses 39,517 39,517
Purchased services 124,724 124,724
Miscellaneous 5,485 5,485
Total Operating Expenses 2,427,100 2,427,100
Operating income (loss) (1,999,877) (1,999,877)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State sources:
School lunch program 30,319 30,319
Federal sources:
School lunch program 1,351,559 1,351,559
School breakfast program 617,291 617,291
School snack program 48,292 48,292
U.S.D.A. Commodities 193,871 193,871
Miscellaneous Income 5,946 5,946
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,247,278 2,247,278
Income (loss) before contributions & transfers 247,401 247,401
Total net position—beginning 1,059,366 1,059,366
Total net position—ending 1,306,767 1,306,767
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources
Federal Sources
Miscellaneous Income
Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Balances—beginning of year
Balances—end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
Depreciation and net amortization
Food distribution program
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

-903-

Exhibit G-3

Food
Service
Program Totals
427,079 427,079
(2,207,601) (2,207,601)
(1,780,522) (1,780,522)
26,603 26,603
1,745,102 1,745,102
5,946 5,946
1,777,651 1,771,705
(2,871) (2,871)
698,344 698,344
695,473 695,473
(1,999,877) (1,999,877)
31,172 31,172
193,871 193,871
(144) (144)
(14,011) (14,011)
8,467 8,467
219,355 219,355
(1,780,522) (1,780,522)
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Payable to student groups
Due to State of NJ - Unemployment
Payroll deductions and withholdings
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Held in trust for unemployment
claims and other purposes
Reserved for scholarships

Exhibit H-1
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Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2018
Unemployment Scholarship
Compensation and Memorial Agency
Trust Fund Funds Funds
245,329 77,813 1,040,973
245,329 77,813 1,040,973
338,388
27,936
702,585
27,936 - 1,040,973
217,393
77,813
245,329 77,813



Exhibit H-2

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Unemployment Scholarship
Compensation and Memorial

Trust Fund Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Donations 6,700
Payroll withholdings 84,289
Total Contributions 84,289 6,700
Investment earnings:
Interest 1,396 248
Net investment earnings 1,396 248
Total additions 85,685 6,948
DEDUCTIONS
Quarterly contribution reports 126,136
Scholarships awarded 16,800
Total deductions 126,136 16,800
Change in net assets (40,451) (9,852)
Net position—beginning of the year 257,844 87,665
Net position—end of the year 217,393 77,813
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Elementary Schools:
Fairmount Avenue School
Jackson Avenue School
Fanny M. Hillers School
Nellie Parker School
Nellie Parker School Donation

Total Elementary Schools

Middle School:
Middle School

Total Middle Schools
High School:
High School
Varsity H
Total High Schools

Athletic Departments:
Athletic Department

Total Athletic Department

Total All Schools

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Student Activity Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Exhibit H-3

Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2017 Receipts Disbursed June 30, 2018
1,466 2,123 2,450 1,139
2,374 5,214 5,010 2,578
2,549 1,604 3,008 1,145
2,720 5,789 2,335 6,174
1,470 1,470
10,579 14,730 12,803 12,506
24,850 44,520 28,462 40,908
24,850 44,520 28,462 40,908
201,803 217,702 196,476 223,029
6,289 44,859 37,786 13,362
208,092 262,561 234,262 236,391
42,325 15,826 9,568 48,583
42,325 15,826 9,568 48,583
285,846 337,637 285,095 338,388
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
Payroll Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Exhibit H-4

Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2017 Receipts Disbursed June 30, 2018
Net Payroll 91,400 37,064,180 37,025,558 130,022
Payroll Deductions
and Withholdings 559,661 27,602,072 27,589,170 572,563
651,061 64,666,252 64,614,728 702,585
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STATISTICAL SECTION




STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)

Introduction to the Statistical Section

Financial Trends

J-1
J-2
J-3
J-4
J-5

Net Assets/Position by Component

Changes in Net Assets/Position

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
General Fund Other Local Revenue by Source

Revenue Capacity

J-6
J-7
J-8
J-9

Debt Capacity

J-10
J-11
J-12
J-13

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Principal Property Taxpayers

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
Legal Debt Margin Information

Demographic and Economic Information

J-14
J-15

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers

Operating Information

J-16
J-17
J-18
J-19
J-20

Full-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program
Operating Statistics

School Building Information*

Schedule of Allowable Maintenance Expenditures by School Facility
Insurance Schedule



(€98°619) § (687°650°€) § (TT88L9) $  SOE9€C  §  vE6'SLS'ST$ 16V'SLTHC S T0'SIL'0T S 00SSIT6I S 6€SS9S8T $  0¥T'86I° 1T $
(L66°L9TFE) (LOL99T€E) (969°8L8°67) (FTETLI9T) @QI¥°LTH 1) (S6S°1L8) (0L1°+€9) STO'ISI (100°50L) (1LT°066)
7€6919°61 876°LS9°C1 SET°918°01 TIE9EI'8 96S°1TL'8 LY6'vSE'6 8F1°GLL9 8TT'S86'Y 861°TPL'S 87507501
00TI€0'8T §  OLP'6PS'LI S 6€L°€8E'8T $  LICTLTSL S 9SLI8T8L $  6EI°TOLST S ¥80PLSVI $  LVT6LOFL $  THESIS'EL S €86°L99°I1 §
L9L'90E'T §  99€°6SO'T §  S8L°998 §  SEEI9L  § 8986y §  86vLEL  § 16L°LL8 §  L¥8808 $  80S8SL $  €L9VES
881°086 TLTEEL LITSLS 6€9° Ty YOL 671 r1S°T6€ 115,89 S60°CS9 SL8'FI9 609° 1T
6LS9T€  $  ¥60°9TE $  899°I6T $  969°8IE $  v9I'OVE $  PB6'PPE $  08TO6I $  TSL9ST 0§ €€9Erl  $ #90°€IT $
(0£9926'D) §  (SS98IT+H) §  (L09SPS'D) §  (0€0°STS)  §  990°080°ST $§  €66°LESET S  TLTLES6L $§  €S9°90¥'ST §  TE0°LOSLT $§  L9S'€99°0T $
(S81°8¥T°S€E) (6L6°666°€€) (€18°€SH°0€) (£96'719°97) (TTI'LLS'T) (601+9T°1) (189°12€°1) (0L0°109) (9L8°61€T) (088°11+°1)
¥€6°919°G1 876°LS9°C1 SET°918°01 TIE9EI' 96S°1TL'8 LY6vSE'6 8F1°GLL'9 8TT'S86'Y 861°TPL'S 87507501
IT9POLLT §  9LECTTLL $  1LO'TEOST §  1T9ECS6'LL $  TOS'SE6'LL $  SSILyP'SI$  H08°€8EPI §  S6VTTEEL S 60LV8EEl $  616PSSIL §
8107 L10T 910 S10T 7107 €102 7107 110T 0107 600C

T-r nqryxy

(Bununosov fo s1spq [pn4>ID)

SABI X [BISI UdJ, ISt

juduodwo) Aq uonisod PN
uoneINPY Jo pIeog YOesuNIeH

[-V AINPY20S YAV 2010

uonisod jou JOLYSIP [BI0 L,
PajoLIsaIUN)
PaIoLSOY
syosse [ended ur pajsoAuy
ApIm-1oLIsIq

uonisod jou saniAnoe adAy-ssauisng [e10],
Pa1oL)saIUN)
PaIoLISaY
syosse [endes ur pajsoAuf

saniAnoe adKj-ssaursng

uonisod JoU SANIATOE [EJUSWIUIACS [830 ],
PajoLnsaIU()
PaIOLSOY
syosse [eyrded ur pajsoAuf

SOIIAIIOR [BIUSUIUIIAOL)

-101-



099°0%S ¥67°958°¢ 9L8TLEY SY9L8L'E L6VYI0Y EI191EY EEYPSTY 090°890°t 7€8°120°9 €L0°€T8"Y
SL8T S8TY vSTH [ 06€°L YTIsel 190°T€C LEE901 TSSS0€ -
S8LLES Y 600°TS8°€ TT9°89€ €€S°BLLE LOTLOOY 6860617 TLETSOY €TL196°C 08T9IL‘S €L0°€T8‘Y
0LL'YLIOY] 181°66C vY1 8SE°0L9°6T1 TCO'LIETTI 99€°977°801 L8LTL6E0T P6EVLL'66  $  808°CI8S6 §  I0V9PL96 $§  65L°80T16
001°LTH'C L0T00%C 798°TTr T 070°9€€T YEE669°T 166°615C L6T8ETT 058°560°C €L5°8T6°1 985°SI8°1
001°LTHT LOT00%T T98°TTHT 0F0°9€€T PEE669°T 166°615T L6T8ET'T 0$8°560°C €L5°8T6°1 985°GI8°1
0L9°LYTPP1 YLT668 171 967 LYT LTI 786°0£0°0C1 TE0°LTSSO1 96L°TSH 101 L60°9€S°L6 8S6°61L°€6 8T8°L18 76 €L1°€6£°68
8€E9€8 1LS°8TI°T vI8'LE 8€979 675 €rT 687°SCI S99°TS 0€8°9L 60€°85T 62T 16€
(956°¢€) (956°€€) (956°€€) (956°¢€) (956°¢€) (956°¢€) (956°€€) €9TTHOT 09S°ILY
TIEErTT 6YL TPl €OLSTI 197 191°1 LITYOTT 060°9L6 LILY16 L8%°989 969779 8156
$60°C8 (aadi 18€°LT1 801°Sw1 06€£°591 195°981 08€°90C €97°€€T 8ES LI YIEEre
LE6LBT'E 1SL°S81°E 099°L€9°T ¥98°066°C ¥98°8LYT 0L9°L8T‘1 YEI'I88 LIE°€99 £70°169 L8L'S9S
LITTEOS 609°L6€°8 S61°50€°9 9LYLI8‘S $S8°TE6'S ¥ST'S8L S YovLLY'S
1+€°989°CC 6LSTS8ST TIT697°C1 L68°€66°6 66L1€ES €SP SHE'e 0L0°998°L 959°11S°S 860°€YS‘9 €50°8LYY
998°505°C PEI'L8O°E 20076L°C 669°L0¥'C 16£°8L6°1 PSS EEs‘l PP p16°1 961°609°1 €LS°618°1 187°196°1
€€5°0EL%6 YEL'LTTOL STT'SSL'6 L8S10%°6 9€T°0T9°L 00€°THL9 0LEYH9'9 £78°616°9 8€E°T08°9 £97°056°L
950°SLYT 620°68%°C ¥89°LLET 6Tr'62CT 8EL‘S66°1 955°LT9°1 61%°595°1 8TTBIS I OLEPLET LTHSITT
67LT8I°9 €0€°SLI'Y SES9SE’S €16°1€T°1 €LESEL'E €01°L08°€ TTEESTY 18T¥SSYy 069691 6LE9T8'E
SYTOEE’l TLLLLTT 06€£°590°1 £98°778" 810296 69T°LL8 STL'9Y6 T90°1€1°1 S88°681°1 TLLYTT
€09°0vS°L1 L96TOE6] 866°16L°L1 TT6°96T°S1 L6L'S6LE1 87T0€9°€1 909°090°€1 €SHTH0TL TEF9P9°01 LLY'€80°01
£96°000°L 871°8L9°9 01+7%0°9 819°00€°S ¥8T°058°S €8€°€SL S ¥96°TL8’S L86°EES9 010°69%°9 TEL9TE'S
8LT69T°C L66°LTTT LY80L6T LEFPPL'T 099°188°1 SPSUEE0°T T01°19¢°1 1LYTT1 1087EH T 0791l
90€°01C°E £87°611'E 8L8vTT'E SSSUESLT £09°8TET Y9r1S0°T YTr9€0°T 09T°S€0°T 665°LT1T 908780°C
YEP 12991 806°68C°L1 L6§°010°ST ¥8L'ST6TI 9ELEEETT €S9°STII1 SL6‘TIS'S 879v06°L 122°820°L 891°€TS°9
1LS°8LE LY 999°€0¥*8% 911°66¥'St 970095 6€ PT8PSE‘EE 61C°68L°CE 1ITY99°6€  §  809°0L0°bE  §  TI¥L8ILE §  Iv8SPT'EE
810C L10T 910C S10C ¥10C €10C 710C 110C 010C 600C

T naquxy

(Bununodon fo s1spq [Pn.12ov)

SIBI X [BISI U], JSeT ‘UONISO JIN uI saguey))

uoneINpy Jo paeog MIeSuddNIey

sonuoAal wrerSo1d sONIATOE [BIUAWIUIOA0S (810 ],
suonnqryuod pue syueid [ende)
suonnqryuod pue sjueid unerado
1SOJIAIOS 10] sa3Iey)
SANIANIE [RIUSUIUIOAOD)
SINUIAIY WeIF01]

sosuadxa 1oLISIp [B10,

asuadxa soniAnoe odA)-ssaursng [e10],
100Y9S Awopedy
J0IAI3S POO]

:saniAnoe adK)-ssoursng

Sosuadx? SAIIAIIOR [BJUSWILIIAOCS [BJO ],
d1qeroardapuou - AepinQ ende)
suonesqQ asea] [ende)) % uoneznioury
uonerdardop pajesorreun
199p WiI)-3UO] UO JSAIANU]
S[00YOS 1IeYD)
s[ooyag [ervadg
sigaudg paredoqy
s)joudg pAjeoo[feun
uonepodsuen idng
soueuurew pue suornerodo jueld
UONEeNSIUMIPY [EIU)D)
SOOTAIOS QAIJRNSIUIIPE [00YIS
SOOTAIOS QATIRNSIUTWIPE [RISUIL)
SOTAIOS PAJRIAI UOTIONIISUI 2 JUIPMS
uonmp,
:5991A10¢ J10ddng

-102-

uonodNNSuI 1YI0
uoneonpa [eroads 1oy10
uoneonpa [eroadg
1e[n3oy
uononnsuy
SOIATIOR [EJUSWILIIAOD)
sasuadxy



TV 9INpaYdS YAVD 00108

9Tr 6Er'T §  (L9r'T8cD) §  (Lzisio) $§  L6ET6TT $  ehF00ET  § 6TH09SE  §  T9S66F 1§ (EvS'8IY) § (@190 § 16D $ 1OLISIP [210],

10%°L¥T 185261 0S¥'S01 L9¥°S9T (0€9°1+0) (€6T°0v1) 77689 6€€°0S YLE'6TT 606°9L saniAnoe adAy-ssoursng

STOT6I'T $  (8¥0°SLSD) $  (LLS'0T0'D) $  0€6'920°T $  €L0TKPST $  TTLooL's  $ 8I90er'T  $  (T88°89Y) $  (9€5°9s8'0)  §  (ST8'8L) $ SONIATIOE [EJUSWILIOAOD)

uonisod PN ui duey)

186706 TF]  §  EP6LOP'SEL  §  00L°6S8TTI  §  1T9P6TLIT S 8LY9S0°E0I $  8E6'0L8°001 $  SOPT8IW6  $  ¥60'E8I68  §  09'6£6'S8 S SLTI6F P8 S APIM-IOLSIP [E0

96°S 11 LS9°S YSEPT 0L8°T £65°¢E €21 8L - - sanianoe adAy-ssauisng [ejo L
¥0S°S ¥SS1T SIQJSUBL,
9¥6°S 89°C 1L9°1 0LEEE WOdU] SNOUE[RISIA
I €51 9! 661 €91 €21 8L SBUTLIES JUAUSOAU]

:sanAnoe adK)-ssoursng

SE0°668°TH1 TE6'LIV'SET £P0°PSSITI LITOLTLIT 809°7S0°€01 SO¥°LES°00T 787778976 910°€81°68 097°6£6°S8 SLTT6V'¥8 SONIAIIOE [EJUSLULIGAOS [B10],

G0s9) (GRS sioysues, &3

H:.Hmho \ﬁﬁcﬂuﬂaﬂ uod - juAYA ﬁmoOJ 1

9L8°€L6 YIS 191 $85°861 TSE°L69 9€L°699 $8€°809 T8L'SLT 66£YST €98°CI¢€ 0L9°18€ owioour SNOSUT[[RSI
0£9°€€ 991 98L°01 15Ty (1143 0£9y 996 L9°8S 99°56 LS0°001 SBUTLIES JUAUISAAU]
0v0°1S9°L TIL6TI'S 9ST°EV6'L SESTOY'8 020°€PS‘8 006°658°L 6£5°006°9 PIFPP69 LY6°18T°9 PIITIL'S PIALROOY uonIm,
TIT6IE TS 9LSTOV LY TITYTI'8E S61°056°€E €ST0L6'TT 98Y°1LT €T 0¥0°86£°0T 0STOVT'LI OTELITLT 0¥6°50S 81 SUONNQLIUOD PUE SJULIS PojoLNSaIU )
€18°v99 $9°969 sesseL 906°LSL TILYS9 T81°TLS Srr08 TETP90°T 9EY°T6L T16'766 3DIAIDS 1G9P 10J PAIAJ] SIXBL,
Y95°9STI8  $ 6£0°T90°6L §  €8€°LS8YL S T6S68EEL S L999ITIL $  TT80TSY S OISTOEY99  §  PLISIL'E9 $  8STGETTY  §  T8S96L'SS  $ 1ou ‘sasodind [e10ua3 10J Patad] saxe) Aadolg

:SONIATOR [BJUSUIUISOAOD)
uonIsod 9N ur sdfuey)) JIYIQ pPue SINUIAIY [BIIUID)

(Sss°sov'6ED)  §

(0TF0S8°LED)

(LT8YLL'TTD) _$

(4TT'200911) _$

(S£0°9SL°T01) _$

(60S°01€°L6)

(€¥8°781°€6)  §

(L£9°109°68)  $

(229°995°88)

§  (6I'c6r'v8)

3 asuadxa Jou IPIM-)OIISIP [E10],

00°SSH 1¥C
(010°L0L°6ED)  $

00°0L5°T61
(086°CH0'8ET)  §

00°€6L°66
0T9'pL8TTD)  $

00°EITT¥CT
(LeSEPTOID) §

(00°005°€¥2)
(sgsziston $

(00'9T8°€LT)
(€89°9€1°L6)  $

0012889
(¥99°15T°¢6)  $

00°192°0S
(868°159°68)  $

00LE6TT
(966°56L°88)

00°606°9L
$  (001°0LS+8)

saniAnoe adK)-ssoursng
$ SONIAIIOR [RJUSWUUIIAOL)
ANuIAIY/(dsuadxy) 39N

S sonuaAal werSoxd JoLysIp [e10],

sonuaaal weidold sanianoe 2d4Ay ssaursng [ej0,

suonnqryuod pue sjueid [epde)
suonnqLuod pue syueid sunered
90IAIOS POO]
SOITAIDS 10J SaSIRYD)
:son1Anoe adA)-ssoursng

SIT'60T'L $ 1L0°6¥1"9 $ 1€5°568°9 $  86LY9E9 $ 1€€°0LY9 $ 8L7°799°9 $ 1651659 $ 1L1'Y1T9 $ 6LL°6L1'S $ 895°GIL%9
$55°899°C LLL'T6S'T §§9°TTST €SI°LLST YE8°SSY'T S9T°9¥E'T 8I1°L0ET 111°9v1°C LY6°LST'T S6vT68°1
TEETVTT 60T'SST'T TSE'LBIT SSS'8ETT 9S9°LL6T 12S°126°1 658°8L8°T LET'STLT €ET°0ILT £V0°8TH'1
€TT'LTY 89G°LEY €LTSEE 865°8€Y 8LI'8LY oy 65T'8TY vL60TY vI8'LiY [4Said
810¢ L10T 910T S10T 10T £10T (414 110T 010T 600T

T naquxy

(Bununodon fo s1spq [Pn.12ov)

SIBI X [BISI U], JSeT ‘UONISO JIN uI saguey))
uoneINpy Jo paeog MIeSuddNIey



[-€ 9[MPAYOS YAV :20In0S

- S - $ 81 $ 81 $ LET $ 0SL‘6SS $ 183°888 $ 755956 $ 9P TES $ €IEP60°T §  SPUNJ [EJUSWILIDOAOS JOUO [[E [EJOL
- - 81 81 LET 0LT6T1 690°L9€ TT1°€LT puny 901A198 199
LSYTL TI8'1cs €P€89 puny sjoafoxd [eyde)
:u1 paytodal ‘paudissy _
€20°81Y puny sjoafoxd [eyde) <t
ur payjodal ‘papruuuo)) n1U_
661°9L 0L6°891 puny 9914198 142 '
LYT9SL €PeSTOl puny s109fo1d [eyde)

- - puny onudAdl [eroads
:ur pajtodal ‘paaasaun)
PoAISIY
Spun, [BJUSUILIIA0CD) 1YIQ [[V

8TE0IH91 § 8€0°€6S°El § €TLS06°'TT § S9E'E6S I § LEO'TTO0L $ 126°€8T°01 § 106T61°L  $ 00¥°L29°S  $ 91°6S1°9  § Y1¥2006  $ puny [e1oua3 [ej0],
Y6£°€6L 060°S€6 909°680°1 9T eY8 8LS°00€°1 YTL'88Y 1 $€9°90€°1 9TL865°1 paugisseun
¥89°861°C 687°LEY 65¥'S19 LOS'€19°C 961°16TY 0017889 968°658°1 961688 paugissy
0S€79T £€5°01¢ papiuon
0ST8IVEl 6S¥°0T0°T 1 859°00T°01 Y6T°9€1°8 €9T°0Er'y L60°T16°1 120°89L°¢€ S¥9°879°C pajoLnsay
01¥'6vT1 €YY 69L paAlesalufy
TSL606Y  $ 1L6TET8  § POAIRSTY

puny [elousn

810C L10T 910¢ S10T ¥10¢ €10C 4114 110¢ 010¢ 600¢

(Bu1unodp Jo s1svq [pnddp paifipout)
SIBI X [BISL] Ud], Ise]
‘Spun J [BJUIWUIIA0L) ‘sdue[eg puny
uoneINpPY Jo paieog JoesudadeH

€ NquUxy



06Z°L10°C L6T 9L 798°L1€E €9L°T6S°1 (L6t 128) 688°19L°C 8T8°LOY1 (F06°SLT) (611°01%) 81T°LLTD)
ILE' LYY ETT YIS 615 L11 8C0°L9STI1 9ZE1¥0°601 209°068°L01 SOF 0¥ 201 L88°89¥°L6 08696616 11%°990°96 995°165°16
€18v8 €99°1T1 STsogl ST0'8¥1 £98°891 001°061 L€9°60T 886°LET €LT'881 S6£°0S¢E
000°08S 000°58S 000°56S 000°019 000°S19 000°029 000°0€9 000°0€9 000°01L 8TETYL
0v9°16€°C 8LV TLY'] 110°€99 TL1°009 LY1°L81°€E YL60OTS T SSLYIL TI1'C86°1 SSEVOYT 686°68€°C
LEG6'LST'E ISL'S8T'E 099°L£9°T 798°066°C 798°8LY'T 0L9°L8T‘T PET188 LTE€99 £70°169 L8L*S9S
610°T1SV1 90L‘€9¥T1 £89°766°01 TL9'8TF6 6S¥°€0T°8 96€°L1T°6 YOTYEE'L 12'9L6°S 951°816°S 998°CTS’S
LLYLTT'ST SOr'6TIYI LTSS €T 619°1TE'S £89°9S6°y SSYYIL9 PI8'7169 TL6'6LE'D LL8S60°S L8889ty
L11°TE0°8 609°L6€°8 S61°50€°9 9LY'LIS'S $68°CE6'S YST'S8L'S €50°8LY Y
886°€81'T §SE°€90°¢ LL6]9L'T 66£V6€°T 00TL6 T 66L°9T8°T PP YI6°T 186°809°T €LS'618°T 098°096°T
128°186°L LL6'8S6°L 910°590°8 085°96€°S 810°11€°L 9LE'ITE' 608°00Z°9 6£€°675°9 687°98%°9 S91°6€9°L
9LL'Y6LT LYET89T TOE90L T 98€vH8°1 809°TL8‘T LTTE8YT 89S VIH'1 66181 9L569T°1 9€T160°T
T9TS61°Y 9L9°906°¢ L66°SOL'E €90°0T1°T 1L0°6T6 S06°60t°€ 0€T°T6L'E LTY'T80Y SPSSI8'E 120°TTs‘
€€T160°1 LLO'6T6 TSYTLS 909°CT8°€ £9€°ESt'e 081°5€8 0r1°668 $59°690°1 PEP'SEL] LLS'S9T°1
606°666°T1 9L6°S6£°TT 6L1°LTTTT 98L°TSYTT 698°8%0°CT PEL'6EYTT €86°0S6°01 8¥€796°6 €60°L99°8 Y8LYLT'S
T81°LT6 0T¥'L96 £€5°996 118°1¥6 088068 788198 8TYSS8 89T°€16 7€8°€06 1v6°€hL
00S°C1 ST0°01 000°01 000°01 00%°01 S¥0°6 ¥9S0LT 876081 990°9T1 19T°8¥S
£96°000°L 8171°8L9°9 01¥'%0°9 819°00€°S ¥87°0S8°S €8€°€SL'S ¥96°TLS’S L86°€ES 9 010°69%°9 TEL'9TE'S
8YT'STL ] SET66S°1 LY6°01S°1 01Z°9LY 1 T8E°0LL ] 867 798°1 $90°€ST°1 898°1€1°l SSYSHEl LS8¥80°1
¥08°9L1°C 890°€61°C LEEYET'T TOEBLIT 9¥8°0S1°C ETT'8ES’T 8SHEI8T 601°€T8°T SEO'SY6°T 19€°T16°T
ISP EIE T £6¥°796°01 066°0S¥°01 9SE'SHT 01 SPO'€9¥°01 €€5°LS6°6 0SL°08S°L 8Y1°LLOL Y6T1TH9 95°586°S
8FE199%€ ¥99vTT eE 795°9TL €€ 0tL°9TS‘TE 110°8ST°TE 810°9SL°0€ SPEB61TE 80€°€06°0€ 12T 6V ve 0t6°L18°0€
199°79%°ST1 128°78T'811 068 v81°€11 680°7€9°01 1 S01°690°L01 P6T 91501 S1L°996'86 9L0°1ST'€6 T6T°196°16 8FEYIE68
YTTOSH'E 0€L°L60°€E 806°€58°€ LLTITEE 689°TST'E 111°86%°€ SET°0TS°E ST0°T88°T 17€°$95°9 9L9°0¥€'€
YIS 8T IE SELBIT'LT LYS S65°ST 981°9L6°€T LLO'TELTT ¥67°L80YT 12$'8S1°1C YLO'YTY 81 065°599°91 96S°9L6°61
9L8°€L6 PIS191 685861 TSEL69 0T9°0L9 SSE1T9 66S°6LT 019291 vLOTTE 11¥°€6€
0€9°€€ 9¥91 98L°01 'y (ir43 0€9°% 996 LY9°8S 99°6 L50°001
0v0°TS9°L TIL'6TI'S 95T EV6°L SESTOV'S 0T0°€¥S‘8 006°658°L 6€5°0069 PIv'vr6%9 LY6°18T°9 PITTIL'S
LLEIT6'IS $ ¥89°8SL°6L $ 806°T8S°SL $ 86V LY1'VL § 6LETLSIL $ $00°€60°69 $ $S6°901°L9 $ 90€°6LLYY $ ¥69°1€0°79 $ Y6v 16L°6S $
810T L10T 910¢ S10T ¥10C €10T (414 110¢ 010¢ 600T

- quuxy

SIBIX [BISI U, ISe]

‘Spun, [BJUIUILIIACY) ‘Sddue[eq puny ul saSuey)
uoneINpH Jo pieog NOeSuNOLH

sarrpuadxa (I9pun) 10A0

SINUIARI JO (Aoudroya() ssadxyg

sormpuadxo [ej0],
S93IRYD I9YI0 pPU. JSAINU]
[edourig

1901AI9S 199

Kepno 1ende)

S[OOYS Ia)IBYD)
AI1IM29G [e190S / UOISUSJ IV dL
siyouaq daKojdwa pajedsoreun
sijouaq 9dKodwd payeso[y
uoneuodsuen idng
QoueUAUIEW puE suonerdado juel
S9OIAIOS QAIRISTUTWIPE [RUSD)
$991A10s 110ddns 1ot0 pue ssoursng
SOOIAIOS SANRNSIUIPY [00YIS
SOOIAIOS QANEXSIUTUIPE [BIOUAD)
SOOIAIOS PIIE[AI UONONNSUT 29 JUSPIIS
SOOIAIOS [EOH
SIOIAIOS JIOM [BIOOS PUE QOUBPUIMNY
uononxsuy

:5991A108 J10ddng
uononnsul YO
uononnsul [eroads Y10
uononNsur uoneonpa [eroadg
uononnsuy Ie[ngay

uononnsuy

saamypuadxy

ONUAALI [BJO],
$92.IN0S [BIOPI]
$00IN0S LIS
SNOJUBJ[IOSTIA
sSurures jsa1oyuy
uonmy,
KAQ[ xe],

SINUIANY

-105-



T-0 PU® T-g AINPAYdS YAV 99105

‘papnjour a1om 9say) Ji sasodind sAneredwod 1oy [nySuruLdw Se oq 10U P[noM

pajudsaid eyep [eroueuy oy, “1edA 03 18K woly Ajfenueisqns K1ea saimipudadxs asay) se papnoul jou st puny syoaloid [ende) FLON

%S0 %9°0 %9°0 %L0 %L°0 %8°0 %60 %60 %0°T %1 soxmypuadxa [eyrdesuou
Jo 93eju0orad & e 901AI13S 1go(q
06TLI8T §  L6TL8Y'T $  8SETIE §  60TILST § (L6¥'1T8) §  688°19L°T $  8TEL6VT §  (bS9°LOv) §  (611°S0T°H) §  (SITLLTTD) $ SOOUE[Rq PUNy UI AFULYO JON
000008 000°vT6 (£05°S) (PSS 1T) - - - 0ST'8EE’T - - (s9sM) $201M0S FUIDUEUY IOYIO [EIOL,
000°008 000'%26 0ST'8EE’T (po3e3png-uou) sased] [eide))
(66¥°11¥) (0sv'LLE) (€€v'v6g) (868°T8Y) (8+T'T91) (c1e610) (89L) (590°¢) (S00°1H) MO SIQYSUBI
667111 0SY*LLE 676°88¢€ PrE 19y 8+TT91 TIE6IT 89L $90°¢ S00° 1Y ur SIJsueI]
(s9sn) s32anos Fuueul] YO
810C L10T 910T S10T ¥10T €10C T10T 110 0102 600¢

- quuxy

SIBIX [BISI U, ISe]
‘Spun, [BJUIUILIIACY) ‘Sddue[eq puny ul saSuey)
uoneINpH Jo pieog NOeSuNOLH

-106-



SPI003Y JOLNSI(] :90IN0S

9bS859'8  850°L08 SESTI 00€°79 0vO‘IS9'L  €19°9T1 8102
636°S0E°S L9 8L6°TT1 TIL'6TI'S  TSYTS L102
LYY IST'S  9S€°01 T TP OST'EV6’L  €6T°9S 910C
STIV61'6  SIS‘TSI L8301 0S¥°0€ SESTOV'S 1T S102
8S0°CIT'6  SSTOIS 65€°611 Y01 0Y 020°€PS‘'s  0T€ ¥10T
96LTLY'S  1€0°Eh Ly80T1 88€¥S 006°6S8°L  0£9°Y €107
LSTLLI'L LS9 9L6‘EYT 87699 6£5°0069 996 z10T
T69°9SI°L 85966 P8Y°1 63°TS PIYPP69  LY9°8S 110T
06€°LL99  TIETHT 98%°LS - LV618T9  9¥9°S6 010C
9€8TSI'9  866°SST L99°FS - PITTIL'S  LSO°001 600C
[e10], “OSTIN spunjoy S[ejuay AMNUIAIY SJUAUIISIAU] “OM aunf papuyq
uoninfg, U0 1Sa1aju] Jea X [ed3S1q
paypneun

S 1qryxy

SIBI X [BISL] UD, ISe]
32.1N0S AQ INUIAIY [€I07] JIY)() puny [eIIUIN)
uonedINp Jo pieog YIesudNPeH

-107-



001¢ 1od o1e sojer xe] q
saruedwo) woysAg 103uassajy pue ydeidoya 1, ‘ouoydara 1, Jo Juswdinbyg pue syuswojduy ‘Krouryoejy Jo anjep o[qexe] ©
uonexe [, Jo preog AJuno)) ay) Aq paId9pIo USYM SINOO0 JUIWISSISSEIY

‘uonexe) Jo p1eoq AJunod yoed Aq paysijqeIsa (anjeA JOIewW 10 I1ef) anjeA anij Jo o3ejuso1dd owios e passasse 9q o) parmnbai st Ayxodoid [eay :FLON

10SSAsSY Xe ], [edIoTUnA :0010S

%00°001 6TF'160°95SS  § 9€5°1 00LTLY'88E'S $ - $ - 8 00L‘TLY'88E'S S 00%°6L9°890°1 $ 006°6L°9TE $ 005°TT8°€S6°1 $ 00Z°6€0°TL6T S 00L°181°L9 § 810T
%00°001 008°€ST°09T°S  § LES'T 008°€TS09T°S $ - $ - 8 008°€TS09T'S $ 00%°09L°ST01 $ 000'78€°CTE $ 00L'€SE'E16'T S 00811 1761 S 006°016°LS  § L10T
%00°001 001°60T°291°S  § T6v'1 001°60T°291°S $ - $ - 8 001°60T°291°S $ 00¥ 1¥T'v66  $ 009°9€TSIE § 00S°€TS°9T6°1 $ 00€°869°€88°1 $ 00€°60S°Ty  § 910T
%688 SLI'010°80S'S  $ 1sS°1 0SS'LYO'vL8 Y $ - $ - 8 0SS'LYO' VL8 S 006'7¥LT98  $ 000°L1ELLT $ 00% ISFITL'T$ 0SF'ETT'Y96°1 S 008°0CH'8y § S10T
%66'76 6ELYILTIES  § 8LY'1 096°LSS 0¥6' $ - $ - 8 096°LSS 0¥6' $ 00¥°LSTT88 $ 006°L98°€8T $ 0L6'1€6°TSLTS 060°SPSvL6T S 009°SS0°LYy  § 10T
%TE88 0CT1°861°L09°S  § Yyl YSY'81TTS6Y $ ¥89'%€S° 1T § - 8 0LL'€89°0€6' S 000°LTL'6L8 $ 00¥'SEV'88T § 0L0°9S6°81LT$ 002°961°566°1 $ 001°69€'8y  § €10T
%1698 SSLIVLOVL'S  $ €9¢'1 ¥S9'TIL'Y66'y $ ¥89'%€S° 1T § - 8 0L6°LTT'EL6YS 000°TH0'168  $ 00Z°195°S6T $ 0LS'0ETOVLT S 008998661 $ 00¥ 1EL°LY  § 404
%IL'L8 0L6'VT8 I8L'S  § 00€°T SLO'T66'0LO'S S9S'v60°9T - 8 01$°L68V¥0°S $ 000°6S€°€16  $ 016°9€9°962 $ 006°L6V' V6L 1 $ 00$°S1#°000°T $ 007'886°6€ $ 110T
%L0'86 €6S°LSY0ET9  § 8¢€0'1 LSEYIYTIOY $ LSO'ELT8T  $ - 8 00€°T161°786'S $ 000'7L1°696 $ 00%°009°€Z€ $ 001°C80°626°1 $ 000°€08v0LT S 008°1€S°LS  § 010T
%SS 101 TLO9YT9609  $ SI0'1 00T°9LL061°9 $ - 8 00T°9LL0619S 005°068°6L0°1 $ 00L'ST9'LEE $ 00%'S9€°L86°T $ 009°L¥¥8TLT S 000°LS¥'LS  § 600C
suonen[eA (onjep PR Jlqexe],  SnImN orqng Kuadoig an[eA Juswredy [ersnpuy [eroIowWIwio) wejO) Boy e [eNUAPISY pueT JuBdRA ‘1€ "9
yseD pazijenbyg Kuno)) Xe ] [0040S uonen[eA 1PN jdwoxyg Passassy [e10], papug
1In4 parewnsy [enOy pajewunsy 0011 [BIOL “XBJ SS9 IBOA
0] Passassy
PNJO %

SIBIX [BISI] U, Iser]
Ap1adoag dqexe], Jo an[eA [EN)IY PuUE IN[EA PISSISSY
uoyeINP JO preog NILsudNIeH
9- Nquuxy

-108-



‘sjuowaIINbol 1804 [0BS U0 PIseq oIe 9JIAISS 1qIp IO Saey q
*9]qexe) uoren[eA JoN oy}
pue 193pnq oy} Yim PORIQNS ST YOIYm WIOY JHV U} WOIJ PJE[NOTed SI el Xe} JISeq SJOLISIp AL &

‘syuounsnipe yymoid Surpuad Aue snjd
‘10J8313 ST JOAQ [OIyM Jud019d G 7 10 SUIAI] JO 3500 oY) Aq paseatour 3o3pngq jou Jeak 193pngaid oy
SMO[[0] SB Paje[no[ed uonerwi] Ymoi3 Surpuads oy ueys aiow Aq 303pnq 1ou 1ea4 Ja3pngaad
9y} Pa9oXa jJou Aeul J9Tpnq 90U S,10LISIP Oy} JO sudU0dwon 10110 0 pappe UM AAJ] Y],
- AA9] Xe) puny [eI0UAF B JOJ JIUIqNS UBD JOLISIP JU) 1By} JUNOWE. oY) SHUWI PS-I/:V8T VSIN :J0N

10300[10)) Xe], [edIouniy pue spI0ooy JOLUSI( 99IN0S

LIy'E yT0 Y9°1 122! 10°0 €61 L10T
18¢°¢ §To ¥9°1 ov'l 10°0 8’1 910¢
005°¢ 90 69'1 SS'1 10°0 122! S10T
(443 144\ 191 8v'1 10°0 Lyl ¥10T
LIT¢E 90 I8! Wl 10°0 1! €10¢ .
S60°¢ SCo 6Vl 9¢'1 10°0 ce'l Cloc w
1s6°¢C o 'l o€l 200 8C'1 11oc i
8CET 0T0 60°1 v0'1 00 [V 0r1oc
SITe 00 00°1 (40! 200 00°1 600C
L60°C 81°0 86°0 ¥6°0 10°0 €60 800¢
‘0¢ aunf
papuyq
Ted X
[eosI
Auno) JoeSUoRH 10211(] [B10, JERIVEERETEN ] . ey d1seq
ajey uadiog Joumog, uonesiqo
xe] SuiddefreaQ [eI0USD)
pue 10011(J [BI0L sa1ey SurddejroaQ uoreonpy Jo pieog JoesuoyoeH

(anppa passassv Jo 0§ 42d 210.4)
SIBI X [BISI] UQ, Ise|
sayey xe], L)1adoag surdderaaQ pue 32.11q
uoneINpPH Jo pieog Yoesuddoey
L quyxyg



8- NqIuxy

LSEYIYTIO9 §

00LTLY'88ES $

:uonenje A passassy 1N

*108S9SSY Xe ] [edIotunjy :90I1n0g

%89°C1 008°01€C9L  § %8611 006991°L08 § [e10L
%7290 0l 000°ST1S°LE  $ [# 00SSY JuLIqas
%99°0 6 0087886 $ [eauaunuo) MNSIN
%1L0 L 000°€19'%%  § SIySIoH [renQ
%7260 9 00ZSTISS  § JwSN [ende) re[[a1s
%9T'1 € 006°60S‘SL  $ Sunerndo 499
%01°1 S 008°S16°S9  § %¢€8°0 0l 000°00SP¥  § S9JBID0SSY BZE[d }1NOD)

%L8"0 6 001°6v69%  $ JUOLIdATY duQ Annbyg

%3890 8 000°000°1¥  § %060 8 00S‘6SL'8y  § DT S1vMO], a1x1d

%260 L 00L°80L°6Y  $ 0711 “Auedwo) vSva

%S56°0 9 000°860°1S  § "ou] sd[ep3uroo]g

%61°1 14 00L°6€9°TL  $ %8S°1 S 000°8T¢€‘s8  § (opeuroA) DTT ‘A oesuddey

%S59°1 14 008°689°88  § S10M0, 300dso1d soY DSD

%96°1 € 008°L£9°S0T  § DT s103seAU] D Af

%¢€T'T [4 00%°L60FET  § %9S°C [4 000°000°8€T  § (DINNH) 2AY 109dsoid (g

%8T°¢ 1 000°020°L6T  § %9L°C 1 000°00S‘8%T  § LT 21enbg opISIOARY

an[eA PIssassy [reuondQ] onfeA an[eA PIssassy [reuondQ] onfeA JoAedxe],
19N 1o1ISIq yuey passassy 19N 1o1ISIq uey possassy
[eI0L JO % dqexe], [eI0L JO % J[qexe ],
010¢ 810¢C

03V SIBdX JUIN pPUE B3I X JUd.LIN)

spafedxe |, Ay1adoaq redourig
uoneINPy Jo paeog YIesudPeH

-110-



10309[[0D) xe], [ediotunpA :00In0g

-111-

; $  %00001 LLETT618S LLETT618S 810¢
} $  %00°001 ¥89°8SL°6LS ¥89°8SL°6LS LT0C
; $  %00001 806°T8SSLS 806°CT8SSLS 910¢
} $  %00°001 86V LYTVLS 86V Ly 1 VLS S10T
; $  %00001 6LETLSTLS 6LETLSTLS v10¢
} $  %00°001 ¥00°€60°69$ ¥00°€60°69$ €10¢T
; $  %00001 $S6°901°L9% $S6°901°L9$ (41014
} $  %00°001 90€°6LL V9IS 90€°6LL V9IS 110¢
; $  %00001 769°1€0°9$ 769°1€0°9$ 010¢
} $  %00°001 YoV 16L°6S$ vov 16L°6S$ 600¢
SIBI & KA unowy Ied X [eoSI ‘0¢ aunf
juonbasqng JO 33.1Ud0104 A} JOJ PAIAY] papuyg
Ul SUOT}O[0)) Ao oyp Jo Soxe ], 101sIq i) ¢
183 A [BOSL 94} UIqIM PIjo9[[07) [eosI

SIBIX [BISL] U, ISe]
SUONII[0D) PUR SAAIT X[, Ay1adoag
uonedINp Jo pieog YIvSudICH

6-r Nqryxy



Surpunjar (dIdd) ue[d 2AIIULOU] JUSWAINAY A[Jeq Sopnou]

“18dA Jepudjed Jouid a3 103 uonzendod
pue swoour Jeuosiod ursn pajenores d1e soner asay ], ejep uonendod pue swoour [euosidd 10 f1-f (N HQIUXg 99§ ©

"SJUSWI)L)S [BIOUBUIJ 9} 0} S9J0U 3} Ul PUNOJ 9q Ued }qap SUIPUBISINO SIOLUSIP oY} SUIpIedal s[reid( 930N

-1 “T-1 SO[MpaYdS YAV WINSIJ :90IN0S

o[qe[leAY ION  9[qe[lBAY JON 66€°LEVT - - 66€°C9T°1 - 000°SLI‘T 810¢C
Olqe[leAY JON  9[qE[lBAY JON 608°€tC - - 608889 - 000°SSL°T L10T
L8TLL $  %0€°€ 000°0t€°C - - - - 000°0t€°C 910¢
88€9L $§  %09T 000°S€6°C - - - - 000°S€6°C S1oc
€6TeL  $  %e6'l €16 vT8'E - - €16°6LT - 000°StS°€ ¥10¢
6y 1L § %Sl 98TTILY - - 98T°TSS - 000°091°y €102
€S6°IL  § %6T'1 TTE'LO6S'S - - TTELIS - 000°08L"Y C10¢ A1ﬁ__
069 $ %90°1 6125819 - - 61T°SLO°T - 000°01t°S 110¢ i\
08099 § %60°1 000°0t0°9 - - - - 000°0%0°9 010¢
L60S9 $ %860 000°819°9 - - - - 000°819°9 600¢C
, Bnde) 19g . dwoou| PISI [810],  sosea] [ende) (SNVE) Sasea| uonedronied o SUBOT/SpUOg Q¢ dunf
[eUOSIdg SOJON U [ende) Jo uone3qo pepuy
Jo 93eju0010g onednuy S9JedY IR [BIdURD) ELEIN
puog [e3s1q
SANIATIOY SANIAT)OY [BIUSWIUIIAOCL)

odA 1 -ssoursng

SIBI X [BISI] U], ISe]
3dA 1, £q 1q9q Surpue)sinQ Jo soney
uonedINPH Jo pieog Yoesud|deHy
01-r NqIyxy



" 1-[ N VqIYxH Ul punoj oq ues ejep uonendod q
“eyep xe} Auadoad 103 9- [N HQIYXH 299G ©

"SJUSUISIE)S [RIOUBUILJ AU} 0) SAJ0U JY) UI PUNoj 9q ued 3qop Surpue)sino s o1msIp ay) Surpredal spreloq 20N
olqe[leAY JON  9[qe[leAY JON 000°SLT°T - 000°GLI°T § 810¢
olqe[leAY JON  9[qe[leAY JON 000°SSL T - 000°6SL° T § L10T

0¢ $ %S00 000°0¥¢°C - 000°0¥€C  $ 910¢
8¢ $ %90°0 000°5€6°C - 000°S€6CT  $ S10T
8P $ %L0°0 000°S¥S°€ - 000°S¥S°€ v10¢
8¢S $ %80°0 000°091 - 000091t $ €10¢
99 $ %0170 000°08L Y - 000°08LY $§ cloc
8L $ %I11°0 000°01¥°S - 000°01¥°S § 110¢
16 $ %010 000°0%0°9 - 000°0¥0°9  $ oroc
201 $ %I11°0 000°819°9 - 0008199 § 600¢
o ENdeD 10g Kadoid Jo SurpueisinQ suonoNpa([ sueo/spuog ‘0¢ aunf
aneA d[qexe],  19°d papuog uonesqo papuyg
[emoy [eIoUSD) JON [eIoUaD) Ie3 X
Jo a8eyuaoiog [eosTq

LI-r 1qryxy

SurpueisinQ 1qo popuoyg [LI9USD)

SIBI A [BISL Ud ], Ise]

gurpue)sinQ 3q(J pIpuoy [BIIUIL) JAN JO soney

uonedINpy Jo pieog YOesud vy

-113-



"ON[BA 9[qEXE} [B}0} SHIUN [ord Aq I1 SUIPIAIP PUB SILIEPUNOq SIOLISIP
oY UIYIIM SI JBY} N[BA S[qBXE} SJIUN [BIUAWUINA0S Jayjoue Jo uontod o) Sururuig)ep £q pajewnso a1om sagejuadiod ojqeorddy
‘sanjeA Aurodoid passasse ojqexe; Suisn pojewniss st o[qeordde 1qop Surddejroao jo a8ejusorad oy ‘soxe) Krodoad yyim predar 1qop 104

uowAed Jurddejroro yoes Jo 9qop ayy Suikedar 10j o[qisuodsar 910J0101}) pue ‘QuapIsal € SI JoAedxe) 1949

et A7dwir Jou S90p SIY) IOASMOH ‘JUNOJOE OJUI USME) 9q P[NOYS SOSSIUISN] PUB SJUOPISAI A} Aq dUIOq UIPING Jqop dINUD

o) 9qop wd)-3uo] Aedai pue ansst 03 AI[Iqe SIOLISI(] Y} SULIOPISUOD UIYM YR} SOZIUF0031 $50001d SIY ], OBSUINOBH JO sassauisnq

pue sjuapIsal oy} £q auloq st jeyy sjuawuioao3 Surddejroao asoy Jo 1qop Surpueisino ay) Jo uontod oy} SOEWIS? A[NPAYDS SIY ],
"10LSI(q 9y} Jo saLrepunoq oryder30a3 oy yim aed ur 1SeI[ Je ‘Oprourod Jey) S0y} a1k sjuowuioros surdde(roap :ON

001JJO S JoInsea1] Ajuno)) uadiog / J0JeNSIUIUPY JOBSUdNORH JO AJI) :S3IIN0S

780°650°¢TI $ 1qop SurddepaaA0 pue 329.1p [BI0 ],

780°088°1CI $ 1qop Suiddepaao eyoiqng
0L9°SPSHT § %9906 areys sAD-Aoyny Ainn Auno) uadiog
Te80Iv'6T §  %LSEE aIeys A1) - udgidg Jo Auno)
08S°€T6'LL §  %000°001 soesussoeH Jo A1)

221081 [00Y9S Jo 1qap Surdde[1aAro N

000°SLT T $ 8107 ‘0€ dung Jo se JLISI(] [00YIS JO 1 311
199 SurpueisinQ . 2Iqeorddy JIU[) [BJUSWULIIA0D)
SurddefzonQ jo 19°d o3ruao1od
JIRYS pPArRWNSH porewnsy
810T ‘0€ dung jo sy

199 SINIANIY [BjudwIdA09) Surdde[1aAQ Jo soney
uonedINPY Jo preog Noesudey

CI-r Nqyxy

-114-



SIOLISIP 1930 10§ d[qeotjdde aq p[nom sHWI] % JOYI0 OLSIP 7T YSNoxy I € 10§ 61-pT' V8T VSIN Aq 108 Jury €

L[ 9[NPAYOS YAV SPI0dRY 10LISI(] PUB SI[QEIEY JO 0BNSqY  :99IN0S

%€8°0 %CT'1 %191 %61 %I1€T %T9'C %86'C %0T'€ %T9°'¢ %YT Y | 1q9p Jo aejusoad € se
] 2y 03 9[qedrjdde 1gap jou [B10],
06S60°I¥L  § 666 1CSTYI $  S0S6STEVI $  s9sosy'syl  §  €TT91°0ST  §  ISSHESHSI § 9ITLSS'SSI PS8LSY'EIL  § 16¥°799°091 $  €9°9s€'6v1 $ uigIew 1gop [e3a7]
000°SLI°T 000°SSL°T 000°0+€°C 000°5€6°C 000°S+S°€ 000°091°% 000°08LY 000°01#°S 000°0+0°9 000°819°9 iy 03 djqeotjdde 1qop 19U [el0 L
065°69T°Tr1 666°9LT P11 S0S°66S SH1 §98°G8E IS T ETTYILEST 185769851 91T'LEE 09T 7S8°L9T 691 16%°T0L°991 €9r'L6'SST i 1geq
810C L10T 910T S10T ¥10T €102 T10T 110T 0102 600T

06S°626°6€1 $ [0l urdreur jqop [e3o]

000°0t€°C [le]] 199p [00Yds Papuoq PN

06569 CH1 ldl (on[ea uonezienba a5eIdAe JO %, ) W[ 1G9

8SL°6€L9ssc eVl K1adoid ajqexe) Jo uonenyea pazijenba ogeIoAy

SLT6IT0LY0L § [V]

SLI'01080S'S  §  SI10T

001°60T°C91°S  $  910¢

008°€ST°09T°S  $  L10T

€1-r NqIxy

siseq uoren[ea pazijenbyg

LT0T 1€d X [BISI] 10j uone[nd[e) UISIeA 3qa( [€39]

SABI X [BISI UI ], ISt
uoneULIOJU] UISIRIA] 3G9(] [€39]
uoneINpy Jo preog YOeSuNOBH

-115-



Juwdo[dAd(] 92I0INIO AN Pue J0qeT JO 31do(q [N Ui Aq papraoid ejep juowAojdwaun 0
1uowdoaAd (] 9I0JIO A pue J0qe Jo 1do(T (N £q papraoid - L1uno)) usdiog - dwoou] [euosiod eide) 10

Juwdo[dAd(] 92IOINIOAN Pue J0qeT JO 31do( [N Aq papraoid - £yjuno)) uadidg - SwWodUl [BUOSId] 9
1uowdoaAd( 9I0JSIOA pue 10qeT Jo 1dd(T [N 91 £q papraoxd uonewoyur uonendo |

:32.n0§
9Iqe[IeAY 10N I[qe[IeAY 10N I[qe[IeAY 10N I[qe[IeAY JON 810¢C
%0LV S[qe[reAy 10N 9[qe[reAY JON 8¥T 'SP LT0C
%00°S LSI°LL 870°S00°99%°€  $ Y06 1y 910¢C
%05°S 88€°9L V8ELSSETYE § 818 v¥ S10¢
%059 €6T°EL ¥00°0T6°0LT°E $ 8T9vP ¥10C
%0L'L 6Py 1L 1TT8ESTIETE § 6T8'EP €10¢
%088 €S6°TL €8TTY6'LET'E § 119°€ (4114
%0T 6 770°69 091°618°S66T $ 06€ €Y 110C
%096 080°99 0VT V65 98T $ 8LOEY 010¢C W_u
%0L°6 L60°S9 €8€°099°6£°'C § 6€8°TS 600¢C -
» ey , dwodu| . (sxefjop , uonendod Jed k.
juowAordwaun [euosIdg Jo spuesnoys)
ende) 104 QwIooU] [BUOSIO]

SIBI X [BISL] UD, ISe]
SINsne)S druouody pue dydeasgowdq
uonedINp Jo pieog YIesudNPeH
PI-r Nqyxy



pajou s1eak 10J pap1aoid AJUO Sem BB 4
NOBRSUINOBH JO UMOJ, :32.N0S
SNYIONOD ADVAILd

OL 4Na 41NAdHOS SIHL ALATdINOD OL d4ddN NOLLVINJOANI ASVHTdd OL
ASNddd SYHAOTdNG VALYV ANV J40dVT 40 INHINLIVIIAd AdSIAL MHN HHL

judwAodwyg

810,
JO 33U

(reuondQ) s3afojdwuyg yudwAojdwryg (reuondQ) s3dAodury JLojdwuyg
quey 130 quey
JO 33U

SI-C Nqryxy

6007 810¢

23 08V SIBIX UJJ, pUE JBIX JUILIN))
saaAojdwy redourig
uoneINpY Jo paeog YoesudPeH

-117-



SPI023Y [QUUOSISJ JOLSI(] :3IIN0Y

6SL 6SL S6L S89 90L 8LL IyL 179 LyL L69 [eoL
uoneuodsuen [1dng
9¢ 9 Is S9 89 I8 9 IS 9¢ 199 ooueusjurew pue suonerado jue[d
81 4! vl L1 vl 4! 91 S1 91 SI SIOIAISS SANRNISULUPE SSIUISNE
6€ 8¢ 9¢ LE €9 09 [43 (4% 6¢ LE SIOIAISS QATJRISIUILIPE [00YDS
S 14 € 14 9 9 9 9 9 9 SOOIAIOS QAT)RIISUILIPE [BIQUSD)
(V1% 98 09 68 L8 L8 S8 LT YL 81 SOJIAIDS PIJE[aI UONONISUL 79 JUSPNS
- ) ) ) . ) . ) . - uonmyg,

15001104 10ddng

- - - - - swerdoid uoneonps Surnuruos APy
- - - - - - - - surei3oid jooyos orjqnduoN
- - uononISul Y0

- - - - - - - - - - [eUOI}BOO A
- - - - - - - - - - uonednpa [eroads 10q10
€91 8¢l SOl €61 v81 (\[44 91¢C Sel 4! 0¢ uoneonpa [eroadg
8¢y Ly 9¢s 08¢ ¥8¢C (1IR3 ¥0€ SLE iy 9¢s Te[n3oy
uonoNISU|

we.ls01d/uonyuny

8107 LT0T 9107 10T 14 14 €107 (4114 1102 0roc 6007

SIBI X [BISI UI ], ISe]
‘wreagoag/uonduny Aq sddfojdwy 3o113s1(q JudreArnby swn-[nyg
uoneINpy Jo paIeog YIesudjdey
9I-r Mqryxy

-118-



(SYS) Arewrng 19)S1393 [00U0S ) WO} PAUTL}qO 216 dJULPUE A[1ep 25BIIAL PUE JUSW[OIUD AJIEp 95BIAY
"JJeIS PRJeONTIIRD JO SjudeAInbo ouwm-[ng Auo sepnjour jjeis Surgoed ]
[ 9[Npayds ‘Aepno [einded pue 991AISS Jqap SSI saImIpuadxa punj onuoAdl [e1dads pue puny [e1oudd [ejo} [enba saxmipuadxe Suneiad

5
q

SoNI[Iok] [00UdS SUIPUS)E SIUSPMNIS [[B I0J JUNOD JOINSIP I9q0JO0) [eNUUE U0 PISEQ JUSW[OIUT 3JON

- SO[NPAYOS puUE YSSV ‘SPI00SI JOINSI(]  :$3IINOS
%Y S6 %050 cor's €L9°S 481 011 81 109 %86'¢ €0T°1C 816°06£°0C1 0'8L9°S 810C
%9596 %0¢°0~ IS¥'S ST 111 011 011 999 %L0'Y 16€°0T €8€°0SESTI 0'LS9‘S L10C
%S1°96 %SS°0 v’ 799°S 111 60°1 81 1€9 %0T'¢ £65°61 966°€8Y 111 0'069°S 910¢
%YL S6 %80°¢ 16€°S 1€9°S €Il I 481 €LY %650 68681 €89%0L°LO1 0°€LY‘S S10T
%LL'S6 %S0°1 TeTS €9%'s 481 481 481 L9y %¢ES'T vL8'81 T65°616°€01 0'905°S ¥10C
%TEL6 %8¢ 192°s 901°S 481 011 011 1€$ %96'1 68581 1€€°180°001 0'%8¢€'S €10T
%09°56 %6L'1 766y ¥TT's 011 011 I 0cs %611 €T 81 S9¥%98°56 0'85T'S (414
%reS6 %L6'1 €68 Ter's ST1 ST1 €T 1 01¢ %951~ 610°81 088°9%1°76 0FI1'S 110C
%95 ¥6 %L9T 6SLYy €€0°s ST1 ST1 €T 1 96¢ %ST'¢ Y0€'81 €8L°€LYT6 0°€90°S 010C
%1S¥6 %I1y0- €€9'y 206y ST1 ST1 €C1 9¢¢$ %060~ 8TLLI 76880188 0°0L6'Y 600C
A3euddIg JudwI[oIuy ,(vav) ,@av) [00ydS YSIH  [00YIS I[PPIIN  ATejududy IS aguey) ndng . Soampuadxy JudwIfoIuy IBIX
Nuepudy Apreq a3eroay uepuNy JudW[oIuUY Surygoed], ELILERRCE | 13d 150D SuneradQ [L2BIK |

juwpms ur dguey) ¢4, Areq Areq
EY{ SEYNY EX{AEYN
oney HYed I /dng

LI-C Nquuxy

SIBIX [BISI] UA], Ise]

sansne)s sunperddQ

uonedINpy Jo preog Moesudjdey

-119-



PAOPN[OUT UIIQ JOU DARY SIUIPNIS JOLUSIP JO INO -~ JOLNSI Y} UIYIIM PI[[OIUD ,SJUIPNIS UO Paseq ST JUAW[[0IUF :JON

ST9 685 685

Y49 Y49 Y43

LL6'6T LL6'6T LL6'6T
91S°L 9IS°L 9IS°L 91S°L 91S°L 000°01 000°01 000°01 000°01 000°01
106°1 SE8°1 €I8°1 9181 SLLT €08°1 6TL1 SILT TILT TILT
¥90°C ¥90°C ¥90°C ¥90°T ¥90°T ¥90°T ¥90°T ¥90°C ¥90°C ¥90°C
6¥€°L9T 6¥€°L9T 6¥€°L9T 6¥€°L9T 6¥€°L9T £YT8ST £YT8ST €YT8ST £YT8S1 £YT8ST
S9¥°1 SI¥'1 1041 S6¢°1 90¥°T LTET 0€9 €9 €L9 €L9
191°1 191°1 191°1 191°1 191°1 191°1 191°1 191°1 191°1 SPHT
TE6°THT TE6°THT TE6°THT TE6°THT [43a14] €6T°€01 €6T°€01 €67°€01 €67°€01 £6T°€01
$9T 9LT 60€ SLT 08T
06 06t 06t 06 061
60€°0t 60€°0t 60€°0t 60€°01 60€°01
314 yTr (1157 (334 66€ 1432 89% 6Ly (1137 1132
1434 1434 1434 rey rey rey rey 1434 1437 rey
008°09 008°09 008°09 008°09 008°09 008°09 008°09 008°09 008°09 008°09
439 SLS €8S 695 $0S 79§ 89 9 91§ 91§
9§ 9§ 9T§ 9§ 9§ 749 9T§ 97§ 97§ 749
000°08 000°08 000°08 000°08 000°08 000°08 000°08 000°08 000°08 000°08
09§ LSS 185 6LS 109 0L9 S99 665 65 655
119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119
00019 00019 00019 00019 00019 00019 00019 00019 00019 00019
Tws SLS 8¢ 18§ 829 895 1€s 667 ory (1122
(139 (139 (139 6€S 6€S 6€S 6€S (139 6§ 6€S
087°08 087°08 087°08 08208 08208 08208 08208 087°08 087°08 08208

8107 LT0T 9107 ST0T ¥I0T €107 7107 1107 0107 6007

SI-rNquyxy

uoyeuLIoju] uIpping [00YdS

SIBIX [BISL UI T, ISe]

Pd jo preog ) !

VSSV ‘SpI0921 J9LISI(] :324N0S

T= 100428 12h0
1 = [00Y2S yStH
1 =10043S S[PPIA
¢ = Areyuowofg
810T ‘0€ dunf Je S[00ydS Jo IoquinN

B Juawj[oIug
(syuopnys) Kyoede)
199 a1enbg
100425 9/¢

199 a1enbg
Surp[ing uonensUIIpy
BRPO

JuowjoIug
(syuopnys) Kyroede)
199 a1enbg

100YdS YSIH YorSUSNORH

{0055 UBTH

JuowjoIug

(syuopnys) Kyoede)
199 a1enbg
100498 S[pPPIA
T00U3S JPPIN

B JuowjjoIuyg
(syuopnys) Kyroede)
1991 a1enbg

0add

B Juowj[oIuyg

(syuopmys) Kjioede)
1991 a1enbg

001D ANUIAY UOSYIB[

B JuowjoIuyg
(syuopnys) Kyoede)
199 a1enbg

10040 SIdYIIH N Auueg

B JuowjoIug
(syuopnys) Kyoede)
199 a1enbg

[00YdS JunouLIef

JuowjoIug
(syuopnys) Kyoede)
199 a1enbg

004§ 13 red " S[PN

Kreyueunrg

SSUIpIg PIOSIA

-120-



601°18€° 1 § €8€°810°1 9768 $ 8€0°999 9Sr'Te8  § €61°106  $ 181°6TI°T  § 8v8°008  § ¥8€°098 $ 001°556 [B10, puBlD
sentoe 1Yo

601°18€°T €8€°810°T 9 T68 8€0°999 95t°TES €61°106 181°6TI°T 8¥8°008 78£°098 001°556 seniioe [00YdS [e10L
€897 68€%S L6L'LE S€0°€9 996°€ €91°6 el £P1°8 8YL'S TIL'6 VIN Surping uonensuIUpy
Y16y 85€°19 TLY'EY 816°9% €80°CS V/N eletok:!

£VE°S6 69%'Sy TIS'SL 865°LS SPS'EIT STI'YL 6¥S°T6 TL8'S9 69L°0L 65S°8L V/N [00Yd§ SNUSAY UOSYoR[
SSL'80T 1STELT 1r1°68 811°601 886°SH1 YES L6 SLLTITI €L9°98 LIT°€6 89€°€01 V/N 10042 SIA[IIH ‘A Aute]
961°9€1 680°L6 168°0L €1¥°s€ £80°99 69€vL ¥$8°T6 880°99 T00°TL 818'SL V/N [00YOS junouIre,f
POT'EST L9L'S8 68949 18¥°CS 18999 SLS'L6 10T°CTl LL6%98 £PP'E6 0€L°€01 VIN [00Y9§ 1o3j1ed 3 SM[ON
8L8THT 6T6°€TE 8€9°LYE 91Z°0€1 £78°85T 6€0°€LT L¥0°91T TLL'EST €0T°$91 68€°€81 VIN 10049S S[PPIA
058°66¥ 681'S€T 815°90C LLT'81T 0S0°LLT yr6°STE 956°90% 159°68¢ PSITIE 1 Se VIN [004d§ YSIH yorsudoeH

600C 010T 10T (404 £10¢ 10T S10C 910T L10T 810T (5) #102l01g SanIIde] [00YdS

61-r Nquuxy

SALLITIOVA TOOHIS Y04 AONVNALNIVIN ATIINOAY - STINLIANAIXH AALNEGTILSIANN

XXX-192-000-11

papneup)

SIBIX [€ISI U, IS

SINIIIR] [00YIS J10J dULUNUEIA paambay] Jo ampayds

puny [e1audn)

uoneINPH Jo paeog NOesuddey

-121-



Hackensack Board of Education
Insurance Schedule
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Exhibit J-20

Unaudited
Company Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
NJ School Board Property -
Association Insurance Real and Personal Property $ 500,000,000 $ 5,000
Group/North Jersey Extra Expense $ 50,000,000 $ 5,000
Educational Valuable Papers and Records $ 10,000,000 $ 5,000
Insurance Fund Demolition and Increased Cost of Construction $ 25,000,000 N/A
Loss of Rents $ 700,000 N/A
Loss of Business Income/Tuition $ 100,000 N/A
Limited Builders Risk $ 10,000,000 N/A
Fire Department Service Charge $ 10,000 N/A
Arson Reward $ 10,000 N/A
Pollutant Cleanup and Removal $ 250,000 N/A
Sublimits: Special Flood Hazard Area Flood Zones $ 25,000,000 $ 1,000,000
Accounts Receivable $ 250,000 N/A
All Flood Zones $ 75,000,000 $ 10,000
Earthquake $ 50,000,000 N/A
Terrorism $ 1,000,000 N/A
Electronic Data Processing -
Data Processing Equipment 2,500,000 1,000
Equipment -
Combined Single Limit per Accident for Property
Damage and Business Income $ 100,000,000 $ 5,000
Crime -
Public Employee Dishonesty with Faithful
Performance $ 500,000 $ 100,000
Theft, Disappearance and Destruction - Loss of
Money & Securities On or Off Premises $ 50,000 $ 500
Theft, Disappearance and Destruction - Money
Orders & Counterfeit Paper Currency $ 50,000 $ 500
Forgery or Alteration $ 50,000 $ 500
Computer Fraud $ 50,000 $ 50
Comprehensive General Liability -
Bodily Injury and Property Damage $ 31,000,000 N/A
Products and Completed Operations $ 31,000,000 N/A
Sexual Abuse $ 17,000,000 N/A
Personal Injury and Advertising Injury $ 31,000,000 N/A
Employee Benefits Liability $ 31,000,000 N/A
Terrorism $ 1,000,000 N/A
Automobile -
Bodily Injury and Property Damage $ 31,000,000 N/A
Public Employees' Faithful Performance Blanket
Position Bond - Board Secretary 480,000

Source: District Records
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Ferraioli, Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva, P.A.

Charles J. Ferraioli, Jr., MBA, CPA, RMA Certified Public Accountants Newton Office
Steven D. Wielkotz, CPA, RMA 401 Wanaque Avenue 100B Main Street
James J. Cerullo, CPA, RMA Pompton Lakes, New Jersey 07442 Newton, NJ 07860
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Thomas M. Ferry, CPA, RMA Fax 973-835-6631 Fax 973-579-7128
K-1
Page 1 of 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
City of Hackensack School District
County of Bergen

Hackensack, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Board of Education of the City of Hackensack School District, in the County of
Bergen, New Jersey, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 31, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit on the financial statements, we considered the City of Hackensack
Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Hackensack Board of Education’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Hackensack Board of Education’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those

charged with governance.
FWC
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Honorable President and K-1

Members of the Board of Education Page 2 of 2

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Hackensack Board of Education’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards or the audit requirements
as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

We noted certain matters that were required to be reported to the Board of Education of the City of
Hackensack School District in the separate Auditors’ Management Report on Administrative Findings -
Financial, Compliance and Performance dated January 31, 2019.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Steven S. Wiethots

Steven D. Wielkotz, C.P.A.
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 816

Foraiot, Wietkotn, Corutto + CavarP.0.

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

January 31, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE AS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
AND N.J. OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
City of Hackensack School District
County of Bergen, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Board of Education of the City of Hackensack School District in the County of
Bergen, New Jersey, compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Compliance Supplements and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the City of Hackensack Board of Education’s major federal and
state programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The City of Hackensack Board of Education’s major
federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Hackensack Board of
Education’s major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and N.J. OMB
Circular 15-08. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and N.J. OMB Circular 15-08 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
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of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
City of Hackensack Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of
Hackensack Board of Education’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the City of Hackensack Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2018-001. Our
opinion on each major federal and state program is not modified with respects to these matters.

The City of Hackensack Board of Education’s responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our
audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Borough of
City of Hackensack Board of Education’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Hackensack Board of Education is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City of
Hackensack Board of Education’s internal control over compliance with the type of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and N.J. OMB Circular 15-08, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Hackensack Board of Education’s internal
control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal and state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal and state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and
state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2018-001 that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance and N.J. OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Steven . Me,elz,a't/?,

Steven D. Wielkotz, C.P.A.
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 816

Forraiot, Wisthots, Corwtts + Cova PO

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

January 31, 2019
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City of Hackensack School District K-5
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Page 1 of 3
State Financial Assistance

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1. GENERAL

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance present the
activity of all federal and state award programs of the Board of Education, City of Hackensack School
District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal
and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal and state awards passed
through other government agencies is included on the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance.

NOTE 2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service
fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Notes 1(D) and 1(E) to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in these schedules is
presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 200-Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ in amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue
fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until
the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year, which is
mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18 A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in the subsequent
year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting
budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues,
whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payment in
the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2.
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City of Hackensack School District K-5
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Page 2 of 3
State Financial Assistance

June 30, 2018

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (continued)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $(218,675) for the general
fund and $9,645 for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for
areconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special
revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s basic financial
statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Local Total
General Fund $165,370 $30,178,708 $30,344,078
Special Revenue Fund 3,290,854 1,249,806 4,540,660
Food Service Fund 2,211,013 30,319 2,241,332
Total Financial Awards $5.667.237 $31.458.833 30 $37.126,070

NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.

NOTE 5. OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions, respectively. Revenues and expenditures reported under the
U.S.D.A. Food Distribution Program represent current year value received and current year distributions
respectively. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2018. The
amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the
District for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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City of Hackensack School District K-5
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Page 3 of 3
State Financial Assistance

June 30, 2018

NOTE 6. ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATE SINGLE AUDIT

On-behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions are not
subject to a State single audit and, therefore, the amount of $11,099,992 of on-behalf payments is excluded
from major program determination.

NOTE 7. INDIRECT COST RATE

The City of Hackensack School District has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate
as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 8. SCHOOLWIDE PROGRAM FUNDS - (APPLICABLE TO SCHOOL DISTRICTS ONLY)

Schoolwide programs are not separate federal programs as defined in Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Grant Guidance); amounts used in
schoolwide programs are included in the total expenditures of the program contributing the funds in the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. The following funds by program are included in schoolwide
programs in the school district:

Program Total
Title I, Part A: Grants to Local Educational Agencies $1,242,159
Title 11, Part A: Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 183,562
Title III: English Language Acquisition State Grants 150,936
Title IV: Student Support and Academic Enrichment 17,489
Total $1,594,146
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K-6

Page 1 of 2
CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
1. Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
2. Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
1. Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? X yes none reported
2. Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with section 2 CFR
200 section .516(a) of the Uniform Guidance? yes X no
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

National School Breakfast Program/National
10.553/10.555 (A) 171NJ304N1009 School Lunch Program

Note: (A) - Tested as Major Type A Program.
(B) - Tested as Major Type B Program.

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
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Page 2 of 2
CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results, (continued)
State Awards
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: unmodified
Internal Control over major programs:
1. Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
2. Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with NJ OMB Circular
Letter 15-08 as applicable? yes X no
Identification of major programs:
State Grant/Project Number(s) Name of State Program
495-034-5120-089/
495-034-5120-078
495-034-5120-084/ State Aid Public Cluster: Special Education Categorical
495-034-5120-098 Aid/Equalization Aid/Security Aid/PARCC
495-034-5120-097 Readlines Aid/Per Pupil Growth Aid/
495-034-5120-101 (A) Professional Learning Community Aid

100-054-7500-068 (B) School Based Youth Service Program

Note: (A) - Tested as Major Type A Program.
(B) - Tested as Major Type B Program.
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CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL, FEDERAL AND STATE FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
(continued)

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

NONE

Section 111 — Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

STATE AWARDS

Finding 2018-01:

Information on the School State Aid Grant Cluster:

State Aid Grant Cluster, State Grant Number #495-034-5120, Grant Period 7/1/17 — 6/30/18.

Criteria or specific requirement:

1.

In accordance with instructions and audit procedures in The Audit Program, Section I-3 and 1111-4,
issued by the Department of Education, the auditor must verify that there are valid "Applications
for Free and Reduced Price Meals and Free Milk™ on file to support the number of pupils reported.
To be considered valid, an application must contain all required information and signatures.

As per N.J.A.C. 6A:15-1.10, to determine the readiness or inability of the individual student to
function successfully in an English only program shall be initiated by the student’s level of
English proficiency as measured by a department established standard on one of the accepted
English language proficiency tests.

As per Section 1-3.29 of the 2018 NJ School Audit Guide, the DRTRS produced by the
department’s transportation software and obtained from the District must agree with the October
2017 DRTRS County Summary Report compiled by the department and posted to the
department’s audit webpage. Each category of the DRTRS District Summary Report must be
verified against the October 2017 DRTRS County Summary Report.

Condition:

1. There were instances in which the District claimed students as free and reduced on the Application

for State School but were not able to provide a valid application for review and in some instances
the District claimed students as free or reduced that were determined to be paid status.

There were instances in which students claimed as LEP were not reported on the WiDa Report
provided by the District and there were instances in which students whose WiDa scores did not
qualify them as LEP were included in the reported number.

There was single instance in which a student was included on the DRTRS count but it was
determined that said student never attended the Charter School.

Questioned costs:

Undetermined
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CITY OF HACKENSACK SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Status of Prior Year Findings

NONE
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